
County of El Dorado 
Board of Supervisors Meeting Room 
330 Fair Lane, Bldg. A 
Thursday, December 6, 2018; 1:00PM     

EL DORADO COUNTY TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
Regular Meeting 

Chairperson:  Shiva Frentzen, County of El Dorado Supervisor, District II 
Vice Chairperson: Mark Acuna, City of Placerville Councilmember 
Directors: Patty Borelli, City of Placerville Councilmember 

John Hidahl, County of El Dorado Supervisor, District I 
Brian Veerkamp, County of El Dorado Supervisor, District III 

• John Clerici, Alternate for City Councilmembers
• Michael Ranalli, Alternate for Board of Supervisors, District IV

Executive Director: Mindy Jackson 

CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 

Closed Personnel Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 Concerning Labor Negotiations 
with the Transit Operator’s Bargaining Unit. The designated representatives for the El Dorado County 
Transit Authority are Executive Director Mindy Jackson and Michael Tucker Legal Counsel.  

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION AND CLOSED SESSION REPORTS 

ROLL CALL 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA AND APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 

The Board may make any necessary additions, deletions or corrections to the agenda including moving 
items to or from the Consent Calendar and adopt the agenda with one single vote.  A Board member may 
request an item to be removed from the Consent Calendar for discussion and possible action, and the item 
will be moved from Consent and heard as a separate item.  Any member of the public may ask to address 
an item on the Consent Calendar prior to Board action. 

OPEN FORUM 

At this time, any person may comment on any item that is not on the agenda. Please state your name and address 
for the records. Action will not be taken on any item that is not on the agenda. Please limit your comments to no 
more than three (3) minutes. Please give any written material presented at the meeting to the clerk for public 
record. 



1. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. 1. Approve Conformed Minutes of Regular Meeting October 4, 2018
2. Approve Conformed Minutes of Regular Meeting November 2, 2018

B. Receive and File October 2018 Check Registers

C. Receive and File October 2018 Ridership Reports

D. Adopt Resolution No. 18-33 stating the fare structure for the El Dorado County
Transit Authority

E. Approve El Dorado County Transit Authority Board of Directors Proposed Meeting
Schedule for 2019

F. Authorize the Executive Director or her designee to enter into preliminary discussions
with property owners and representatives regarding the acquisition of all or part of the
following subject parcels as identified in the County Line Multimodal Transit Center
Study, including the ordering of and payment for preliminary title reports and right
of way valuations;
Site 2: APN 117-160-055 and 056, El Dorado Hills Investors, LTD
Site 3: APN 117-180-004, Jackson II, LLC
Site 5: APN 121-280-024, Huddinge Partners
Site 6: APN 122-720-015, County of El Dorado

G. Receive and File Independent Financial Audit, Single Audit and Compliance
Reports for Fiscal Year 2017/18 for the El Dorado County Transit Authority

H. Adopt Resolution No. 18-34 Authorizing the Executive Director to Claim
Transportation Development Act Claim for Fiscal Year 2017/18 State of Good
Repair Funds

2. ACTION ITEMS

None

3. INFORMATION ITEMS

None

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT * 

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS * 
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ADJOURNMENT 
 
* Verbal Report 
 

 
NEXT REGULARLY SCHEDULED 

EL DORADO COUNTY TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD MEETING 
Thursday, February 7, 2019 1:00 P.M. 

County of El Dorado 
Board of Supervisors Meeting Room 

330 Fair Lane, Bldg A 
Placerville, CA 95667 

 
The El Dorado County Board of Supervisors Meeting Room is accessible for persons with disabilities. In 
compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you require modification or accommodation to 
participate in this meeting, please contact El Dorado County Transit Authority by telephone at (530) 642-
5383 or by fax at (530) 622-2877. Requests must be made as early as possible and at least one full 
business day before the start of the meeting.  
 
To listen to open session portions of the meeting in real time, dial (530) 621-7603.  This specialized dial 
in number is programmed for listening only and is operable when the audio system inside the meeting 
room is activated.  Please be advised that callers will experience silence anytime the Board is not actively 
meeting, such as during Closed Session or break periods. 
 
 

The Agenda is also available on the website www.eldoradotransit.com 

3



County of El Dorado 
Board of Supervisors Meeting Room 
330 Fair Lane, Bldg. A 
Thursday, October 4, 2018; 1:00PM     

EL DORADO COUNTY TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
Conformed Minutes 

Chairperson:  Shiva Frentzen, County of El Dorado Supervisor, District II 
Vice Chairperson: Mark Acuna, City of Placerville Councilmember 
Directors: Patty Borelli, City of Placerville Councilmember 

John Hidahl, County of El Dorado Supervisor, District I 
Brian Veerkamp, County of El Dorado Supervisor, District III 

• John Clerici, Alternate for City Councilmembers
• Michael Ranalli, Alternate for Board of Supervisors, District IV

Executive Director: Mindy Jackson 

CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Meeting was called to order by Vice Chairperson Mark Acuna at 1:00 PM and the pledge 
of allegiance was recited. 

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 

Closed Personnel Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 to consider the Appointment, 
Employment and Evaluation of the Executive Director. 

Closed Personnel Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 Concerning Labor Negotiations 
with the Transit Operator’s Bargaining Unit. The designated representatives for the El Dorado County 
Transit Authority are Executive Director Mindy Jackson and Michael Tucker Legal Counsel.  

Recessed to Closed Session at 1:00 PM 

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION AND CLOSED SESSION REPORTS 

Reconvened to Open Session at 1:05 PM 

Board unanimously approved Executive Director Employment contract effective 
September 6, 2018 

ROLL CALL 

Directors Present: Mark Acuna, Patty Borelli, John Hidahl, Brian Veerkamp 
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Directors Absent: Shiva Frentzen 
 
A quorum was present. 

 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA AND APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
It was moved and seconded to adopt the agenda and approve the consent calendar.  
 
M/S:  Borelli/Veerkamp 
Ayes:  Acuna, Borelli, Hidahl, Veerkamp 
Absent: Frentzen 
 
OPEN FORUM           

 
C. Medeiros 
             
1. CONSENT CALENDAR 
   

A. Approve Conformed Minutes of Regular Meeting September 6, 2018 
 

B. Receive and File August 2018 Check Registers 
 

C. Receive and File August 2018 Ridership Reports 
 

D. Adopt Resolution No. 18-31 revising the El Dorado County Transit Authority  
Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual with regard to policy revisions and  
Additions 

 
E. Receive and File El Dorado County Transit Authority Self Insurers Annual Report  

Fiscal Year 2017/18 
  

2. ACTION ITEMS 
 

A. Final ratification of the Executive Director Employment Contract approved 
September 6, 2018 

 
Receive and File the Final ratification of the Executive Director Employment 
Contract approved on September 6, 2018 
 
M/S: Veerkamp/Borelli 
Ayes: Acuna, Borelli, Hidahl, Veerkamp 
Absent: Frentzen 

              
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT * 
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS * 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned by Vice Chairperson Mark Acuna at 1:18 PM 
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* Verbal Report

Respectfully Submitted, 

Megan Wilcher 
Secretary to the Board 
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County of El Dorado 
Board of Supervisors Meeting Room 
330 Fair Lane, Bldg. A 
Thursday, November 1, 2018; 1:00PM     

EL DORADO COUNTY TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
Conformed Agenda Minutes  

Chairperson:  Shiva Frentzen, County of El Dorado Supervisor, District II 
Vice Chairperson: Mark Acuna, City of Placerville Councilmember 
Directors: Patty Borelli, City of Placerville Councilmember 

John Hidahl, County of El Dorado Supervisor, District I 
Brian Veerkamp, County of El Dorado Supervisor, District III 

• John Clerici, Alternate for City Councilmembers
• Michael Ranalli, Alternate for Board of Supervisors, District IV

Executive Director: Mindy Jackson 

CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Meeting was called to order by Chairperson Frentzen at 1:03 PM and the pledge of 
allegiance was recited 

ROLL CALL 

Directors Present: Mark Acuna, John Clerici, Shiva Frentzen, John Hidahl 
Directors Absent: Brian Veerkamp 

A quorom was present. 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA AND APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 

It was moved and seconded to adopt the agenda and approve the consent calendar. 

M/S: Acuna/Hidahl 
Ayes: Acuna, Clerici, Frentzen, Hidahl 
Absent: Veerkamp 

Chairperson Frentzen and Director Clerici abstained from item 1A. Item 1A will be 
continued to December 6, 2018 meeting. 

OPEN FORUM 

At this time, any person may comment on any item that is not on the agenda. Please state your name and address 
for the records. Action will not be taken on any item that is not on the agenda. Please limit your comments to no 
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more than three (3) minutes. Please give any written material presented at the meeting to the clerk for public 
record. 

1. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. Approve Conformed Minutes of Regular Meeting October 4, 2018

B. Receive and File September 2018 Check Register

C. Receive and File September 2018 Ridership Reports

D. 1. Approve and Adopt the revised Transit Operations Supervisor Job Classification

2. Adopt Resolution No. 18-32 Adopting the revised Allocation Plan for Fiscal
Year 2018/19

2. ACTION ITEMS

A. Receive and File the El Dorado County Transit Authority Fiscal Year 2017/18
Administrative Operations Report for the period July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018

Receive and File only. 

B. Provide direction to El Dorado County Transit Authority staff to identify actual cost
for Apple Farms Shuttle and return to Board to consider funding options for the
project budget shortfall

Action: Provide direction to staff to consider bringing back recommendations
for additional funding.

M/S: Acuna/Clerici
Ayes: Acuna, Clerici, Frentzen, Hidahl
Absent: Veerkamp

Public Comment: W. Deloria, R. Martinez

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT * 

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS * 

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 

Closed Personnel Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 Concerning Labor Negotiations 
with the Transit Operator’s Bargaining Unit. The designated representatives for the El Dorado County 
Transit Authority are Executive Director Mindy Jackson and Michael Tucker Legal Counsel.  
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Recessed to Closed Session at 1:57 PM 

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION AND CLOSED SESSION REPORTS 

Reconvened to Open Session at 2:13 PM 

ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned by Chairperson Frentzen at 2:13 PM 

* Verbal Report

Respectfully Submitted, 

Megan Wilcher 
Secretary to the Board 
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El Dorado County Transit Authority 
December 6, 2018 Agenda 

AGENDA ITEM  1 B 
Consent Item 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: December 6, 2018 

TO:  El Dorado County Transit Authority 

FROM: Julie Petersen, Finance Manager 

SUBJECT:  Receive and File October 2018 Check Register 

REQUESTED ACTION: 
BY MOTION, 

Receive and File October 2018 Check Register 

BACKGROUND 

The following check register includes routine transactions for the month of October 2018. These 
expenditures fall within budgets adopted by the El Dorado County Transit Authority Board of 
Directors.   

DISCUSSION 

One (1) item merits further detail; 

Check #32493 – City National Bank……………………………………….…………..$65,415.53 
This check pays an obligation for Payment #1 of the Capital Purchase of five (5) MCI Commuter 
Coaches using Local Transportation Funds (LTF). 
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 EL DORADO COUNTY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
 Check Register

 October 2018

 Page 1 of 2

Date Num Name Memo Original Amount

10/04/2018 EFT TRANS CalPERS - HEALTH BENEFIT SERVICE DIVISION Health Premium - October 2018 37,594.21
10/04/2018 32487 ABSOLUTE GLASS INC To Replace Ck# 32249 626.96
10/04/2018 32488 AMERICAN HERITAGE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY Employee Paid Premium - October 2018 110.46
10/04/2018 32489 ARNOLDS FOR AWARDS Engraving for EOM Plate - October 2018 12.50
10/04/2018 32490 AT&T / CALNET 3 Monthly Utilities 827.33
10/04/2018 32491 AT&T MOBILITY Monthly Utilities 185.32
10/04/2018 32492 BUS & EQUIPMENT REPAIR OF CA Bike Racks #1801-#1805 8,486.18
10/04/2018 32493 CAL.NET Camera Service - September 2018 176.92
10/04/2018 32494 CITY NATIONAL BANK MCI Coach Payment #1 65,415.53
10/04/2018 32495 COMCAST High Speed Cable Internet-September 2018 240.93
10/04/2018 32496 DAWSON OIL Fuel Purchases - September 2018 53,551.07
10/04/2018 32497 EDC CHAMBER OF C0MMERCE Business Luncheon Registrant: MJ 15.00
10/04/2018 32498 EDC HHSA-PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION Pre-Employment PPD Testing & Eval-1 Emp 36.00
10/04/2018 32499 EL DORADO DISPOSAL Monthly Utilities 307.54
10/04/2018 32500 EL DORADO IRRIGATION DISTRICT Monthly Utilities 1,152.39
10/04/2018 32501 EMP. MISC. REIMBURSEMENT DMV & VTT Renewal - SP 55.00
10/04/2018 32502 EMP. MISC. REIMBURSEMENT Mileage Reimb - MW 27.69
10/04/2018 32503 EMP. MISC. REIMBURSEMENT Misc. Reimb - BJ 84.77
10/04/2018 32504 EMP. MISC. REIMBURSEMENT Misc.Travel Exp - CP 74.10
10/04/2018 32505 FEDERAL EXPRESS Shipping 24.40
10/04/2018 32506 GCR TIRES & SERVICE Tires #0608 #1004 2,804.86
10/04/2018 32507 GLOBAL DATA VAULT LLC Disaster Recovery Cloud Back Up Service-Monthly 300.00
10/04/2018 32508 HUNT & SONS INC Fuel Purchases - September 2018 2,223.91
10/04/2018 32509 IMAGE SOURCE All Copier Maintenance 09/14/18-10/13/18 348.87
10/04/2018 32510 LSC TRANSPORTATION CONSULTANTS, INC. DAR Analysis for DAR Zone Assessment 175.00
10/04/2018 32511 MAG LANDSCAPING INC Landscaping Services - September 2018 690.00
10/04/2018 32512 NEOPOST USA INC Neopost IN-360 Ink Cartridge 216.64
10/04/2018 32513 OPERATING ENGINEERS - MEDICAL Medical Coverage - October 2018 67,808.00
10/04/2018 32514 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC Monthly Utilities 3,688.09
10/04/2018 32515 QUILL Misc. Office Supplies 858.28
10/04/2018 32516 ROUTEMATCH SOFTWARE INC Hardware for New MCI's #1801-#1805 13,417.10
10/04/2018 32517 RTS IT INC IT Services/Back up October 2018 4,592.50
10/04/2018 32518 SQUEAKY CLEAN Int & Ext Window Cleaning-52 410.00
10/04/2018 32519 STATE OF CA - DEPT OF JUSTICE Fingerprints, Investigations-Apps & FBI-08/18 49.00
10/04/2018 32520 SUN LIFE FINANCIAL LTD/Life Premium - October 2018 3,186.81
10/04/2018 32521 TOWN CENTER EAST LP Lease Pymt for October 2018 P&R 700.00
10/04/2018 32522 VERIZON WIRELESS Cellular & Wifi Service - August 2018 3,354.44
10/11/2018 EFT TRANS CalPERS 457 DEFERRED COMPENSATION PROGRAM PAY DATE OCT. 5, 2018 5,697.59
10/11/2018 EFT TRANS PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM SERVICE PERIOD PR #20 12,064.30
10/11/2018 EFT TRANS PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM SERVICE PERIOD PR #20 SUPP. 8,455.49
10/11/2018 32523 A-Z BUS SALES Driver Barrier #0606 #0609 2,809.58
10/11/2018 32524 ABSOLUTE GLASS INC Windshield Repairs 784.93
10/11/2018 32525 ALL CLEAN COMMERCIAL JANITORIAL SERVICE Janitorial Services - September 2018 675.00
10/11/2018 32526 AUTOZONE Gear Oil #1002 439.08
10/11/2018 32527 C & H MOTOR PARTS Parts & Supplies 285.29
10/11/2018 32528 CAPITOL CLUTCH & BRAKE Parts & Supplies 2,174.03
10/11/2018 32529 CELL ENERGY Batteries 785.38
10/11/2018 32530 CITY OF PLACERVILLE Bus Shelter Maintenance 4th Quarter 330.00
10/11/2018 32531 CUMMINS PACIFIC LLC Parts & Supplies 2,478.45
10/11/2018 32532 DENTONI'S Air Bags 1,402.23
10/11/2018 32533 EDC FAIR ASSOCIATION, INC. Fair Grounds P & R Lease 2018 131.48
10/11/2018 32534 FACTORY MOTOR PARTS Parts & Supplies 440.87
10/11/2018 32535 FASTENAL Parts & Supplies 805.91
10/11/2018 32536 FLEMING DISTRIBUTING CO. Additives PM Services 393.18
10/11/2018 32537 GCR TIRES & SERVICE Tires #1704 2,558.05
10/11/2018 32538 GILLIG LLC Parts & Supplies 433.05
10/11/2018 32539 J. C. NELSON SUPPLY CO. Toilet Paper, Towels, & Hand Soap 219.33
10/11/2018 32540 KINETICO WATER OF PLACERVILLE Filtered Water Rental for October 2018 85.80
10/11/2018 32541 MCI SERVICE PARTS INC Parts & Supplies 3,318.49
10/11/2018 32542 MISSION UNIFORM SERVICE Mats, towels 186.73
10/11/2018 32543 NEOPOST USA INC Lease Pymt for Mailing Machine 1,018.52
10/11/2018 32544 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS VOID: 0.00
10/11/2018 32545 PACIFIC MATERIAL HANDLING SOL INC PM Service on Forklift, floor sweeper 258.51
10/11/2018 32546 PLATT ELECTRIC SUPPLY INC Contactor-Air Compressor 48.79
10/11/2018 32547 RIEBES AUTO PARTS Parts & Supplies 143.39
10/11/2018 32548 SIERRA NEVADA TIRE & WHEEL Tires #1607 1,428.72
10/11/2018 32549 SIERRA STITCH FACTORY Uniforms for New Driver's 872.38
10/11/2018 32550 SQUARERIGGER SOFTWARE Annual Software Maint Renewal 18/19 1,801.00
10/11/2018 32551 TERRIE Y. PROD'HON CPA Services - September 2018 8,054.97
10/11/2018 32552 TESSCO INC Whip Antennas #1801-#1805 184.04
10/11/2018 32553 THOMPSONS OF PLACERVILLE Camshafts #1304 248.28
10/11/2018 32554 TRUE VALUE HARDWARE Parts & Supplies 158.57
10/11/2018 32555 UNIVERSAL SECURITY & FIRE INC Alarm Monitoring 10/01/18-12/31/18 135.00
10/11/2018 32556 VIPER PEST CONTROL INC Bi-Monthly Pest Control-#6565 60.00
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 EL DORADO COUNTY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
 Check Register

 October 2018

 Page 2 of 2

Date Num Name Memo Original Amount
10/11/2018 32557 WESTERN SUPPLY INC Tire Supplies 115.77
10/11/2018 32558 WESTERN TRUCK PARTS LLC Parts & Supplies 854.63
10/11/2018 32559 ZEP MANUFACTURING CO. Bus Cleaning Supplies-Shop Use 679.36
10/11/2018 32560 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS Parts & Supplies 616.64
10/12/2018 102 RADIOSOFT INC UHF(450-470 MHz)-New or Mod 690.00
10/12/2018 32561 ABSOLUTE GLASS INC Windshield Repair #1805 45.00
10/12/2018 32562 ADM SCREENING Random & Pre-Employ Screening Sept 2018 625.00
10/12/2018 32563 AFLAC Employee Paid Premiums - October 2018 1,359.44
10/12/2018 32564 CALIFORNIA SPECIAL DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION Annual Membership Dues - 2019 1,377.00
10/12/2018 32565 D&K AUTO GLASS Install Dest Glass #1007 240.00
10/12/2018 32566 DAWSON OIL Tote OF Diesel Exhaust Fluid 963.32
10/12/2018 32567 EDC HHSA-PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION Pre-Employment PPD Testing & Eval-3 Emp 108.00
10/12/2018 32568 GCR TIRES & SERVICE Tire Repair #1202 34.70
10/12/2018 32569 GIRARD & EDWARDS Legal Counsel - September 2018 2,984.50
10/12/2018 32570 HUNT & SONS INC Fuel Purchases - September 2018 664.53
10/12/2018 32571 IMPERIAL PRINTING-HKR Vinyl Bus Decals #1007 2,289.79
10/12/2018 32572 J. C. NELSON SUPPLY CO. Toilet Paper and Towels 137.68
10/12/2018 32573 LANGUAGE LINE SERVICES INC Interpreter Service-September 2018 2.51
10/12/2018 32574 PAINT SPOT INC Paint for Apple Farms 136.86
10/12/2018 32575 QUILL Misc. Office Supplies 526.81
10/12/2018 32576 SPOT-ON SIGNS & GRAPHICS 4 Free Shuttle Parking Signs (Apple Farms) 257.40
10/12/2018 32577 STATE OF CA - DEPT OF JUSTICE Fingerprints, Investigations-Apps & FBI-09/18 147.00
10/12/2018 32578 VISA Reconciled Visa Charges September 2018 2,000.52
10/12/2018 32579 WESTERN SUPPLY INC Equal Tire Balance #1006 379.97
10/12/2018 32580 WOLFPACK INSURANCE SERVICES, INC. Vision/Dental Premium - Nov 2018 4,599.10
10/12/2018 32581 XEROX FINANCIAL SERVICES Lease Payment-October 2018 774.35
10/12/2018 32582 RTS IT INC Firewall Replacement & Untangle Web Filter Install 4,900.00
10/23/2018 EFT TRANS CalPERS 457 DEFERRED COMPENSATION PROGRAM PAY DATE OCT 12, 2018 5,691.29
10/23/2018 EFT TRANS PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM SERVICE PERIOD PR #21 12,002.14
10/23/2018 EFT TRANS PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM SERVICE PERIOD PR #21 SUPP. 8,843.64
10/31/2018 32583 CA DEPT OF TAX & FEE ADMIN Diesel Tax 423.93

389,665.09

Total 389,665.09
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El Dorado County Transit Authority 
December 6, 2018 Agenda 

AGENDA ITEM 1 C 
Consent Item 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: December 6, 2018 

TO:  El Dorado County Transit Authority 

FROM: Brian James, Planning and Marketing Manager 

SUBJECT:  October 2018 Ridership Report 

REQUESTED ACTION: 
BY MOTION, 

Receive and File the October 2018 Ridership Report 

BACKGROUND 

The El Dorado County Transit Authority (El Dorado Transit) staff reports monthly and fiscal 
year-to-date ridership trend reports at each Board meeting.   

DISCUSSION 

Following is the October 2018 monthly ridership table comparing the current fiscal year to the 
previous fiscal year. 

October Ridership 
October 2018 October 2017 Increase % Increase 

33,813 30,349 3,464 11.4% 

In October, Demand Response ridership decreased by 6.6%, Local Fixed Route ridership 
increased by 13.6%, and Commuter ridership increased by 11.3%.  

Following is the October 2018 monthly ridership report and the fiscal year-to-date ridership 
report comparing the current fiscal year to the previous fiscal year. 

Connect Card ridership is recorded each time a Connect Card is tapped onto the equipment in 
one of the vehicles. The number of riders is tracked to evaluate system usage. El Dorado Transit 
recorded 14,614 taps or 40.5% of all ridership in October 2018. Following is the Connect Card 
ridership report with a graph showing the percent of total ridership using Connect Card per 
month. 
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Demand Response FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18 % Change

Dial-a-Ride 5,861 6,722 -12.8%

Sac-Med 121 171 -29.2%

ADA Paratransit 290 330 -12.1%

Total Demand Response* 6,272 7,223 -13.2%

Local Fixed Route FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18 % Change

20 - Placerville 15,106 16,056 -5.9%

25 - Saturday Express 1,510 1,857 -18.7%

30 - Diamond Springs 9,614 8,182 17.5%

35 - Diamond Springs Saturday 474 321 47.7%

40 - Cameron Park 4,591 4,196 9.4%

50x - 50 Express 14,603 11,570 26.2%

60 - Pollock Pines 12,815 13,841 -7.4%

70 - El Dorado Hills 1,586 823 92.7%

Total Local Fixed Route 60,299 56,846 6.1%

Commuter FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18 % Change

Sacramento Commuter 51,252 48,205 6.3%

Reverse Commuter 165 223 -26.0%

Total Commuter 51,417 48,428 6.2%

Other Services FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18 % Change

M.O.R.E. 6,643 8,161 -18.6%

Senior Day Care 2,183 2,310 -5.5%

Total Other Services 8,826 10,471 -15.7%

*Does not include Other Services

Ridership Report Fiscal Year-to-Date  
July 2018 to October 2018

Systemwide*
FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18 % Change

117,988 112,497 4.9%
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October 2018 Ridership Report

Demand Response October 2018 October 2017 % Change

Dial-a-Ride 1,574 1,687 -6.7%

Sac-Med 39 49 -20.4%

ADA Paratransit 87 85 2.4%

Total Demand Response* 1,700 1,821 -6.6%

Local Fixed Route October 2018 October 2017 % Change

20 - Placerville 4,416 4,002 10.3%

25 - Saturday Express 385 416 -7.5%

30 - Diamond Springs 2,998 2,446 22.6%

35 - Diamond Springs Saturday 125 64 95.3%

40 - Cameron Park 1,248 1,275 -2.1%

50x - 50 Express 4,652 3,586 29.7%

60 - Pollock Pines 3,622 3,605 0.5%

70 - El Dorado Hills 434 348 24.7%

Total Local Fixed Route 17,880 15,742 13.6%

Commuter October 2018 October 2017 % Change

Sacramento Commuter 14,203 12,730 11.6%

Reverse Commuter 30 56 -46.4%

Total Commuter 14,233 12,786 11.3%

Other Services October 2018 October 2017 % Change

M.O.R.E. 1,758 2,106 -16.5%

Senior Day Care 556 552 0.7%

Total Other Services 2,314 2,658 -12.9%

*Does not include Other Services

Systemwide*
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Month Number of Taps Total Ridership % of Total Ridership

Jan-17 11 30,023 0.0%

Feb-17 87 29,139 0.3%

Mar-17 257 35,487 0.7%

Apr-17 394 29,448 1.3%

May-17 715 32,170 2.2%

Jun-17 1,313 29,790 4.4%

Jul-17 1,815 26,713 6.8%

Aug-17 2,947 33,442 8.8%

Sep-17 3,397 29,882 11.4%

Oct-17 5,905 33,007 17.9%

Nov-17 5,519 28,104 19.6%

Dec-17 6,065 27,148 22.3%

Jan-18 8,171 31,005 26.4%

Feb-18 7,175 28,913 24.8%

Mar-18 9,492 30,835 30.8%

Apr-18 10,361 31,137 33.3%

May-18 9,009 32,406 27.8%

Jun-18 11,353 28,485 39.9%

Jul-18 9,381 27,519 34.1%

Aug-18 12,048 33,760 35.7%

Sep-18 11,171 29,408 38.0%

Oct-18 14,614 36,127 40.5%

Connect Card Ridership Report
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El Dorado County Transit Authority 
December 6, 2018 Agenda 

AGENDA ITEM 1 D 
Consent Item 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:  December 6, 2018 
 
TO:   El Dorado County Transit Authority 
 
FROM:  Brian James, Planning and Marketing Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Fare Structure Resolution 
 
REQUESTED ACTION:  
BY MOTION,   

Adopt Resolution No. 18-33 stating the fare structure for the El 
Dorado County Transit Authority. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
Fare structure changes require approval by the El Dorado County Transit Authority (El Dorado 
Transit) Board of Directors.  
 
This resolution authorizes El Dorado Transit to change the Dial-a-Ride fares to a mileage based 
system starting on January 2, 2019 to increase the equity of the program by ensuring that 
passengers imposing equal costs on the system are treated equally. The Board adopted the 
proposed changes to Dial-A-Ride from the Dial-A-Ride Focus Group Report and the public 
hearing for the Dial-A-Ride changes was on June 7, 2018.  
 
This resolution will also remove the Grizzly Flat route as approved by the Board on May 4, 
2017. Other noted changes will allow seniors and students to show discount passes from other 
agencies for eligibility, to purchase a day pass at the El Dorado Transit office, to allow passes to 
be loaded onto Connect Cards and to add Route 70-El Dorado Hills to the Fare Resolution. 

DISCUSSION 

Staff is recommending that the changes to the El Dorado Transit fare structure be implemented 
through adoption of the Fare Structure Resolution.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 

There may be a nominal change in farebox recovery as the consultant noted a potential slight 
increase in revenue due to the Dial-A-Ride fare changes. 
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EL DORADO COUNTY TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
RESOLUTION NO. 17-0218-33 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE EL DORADO COUNTY TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

STATING THE FARE STRUCTURE 

WHEREAS, the El Dorado County Transit Authority (El Dorado Transit) Board desires to revise 
the Basic and Discount Fares to generate revenues to fund operating costs. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE EL DORADO COUNTY TRANSIT AUTHORITY (EL DORADO TRANSIT) AS 
FOLLOWS: 

THAT, this Resolution shall become effective on July 1, 2017 January 1, 2019 and as of such 
date, the El Dorado Transit Fare Structure shall be as hereinafter set forth. 

I. PURPOSE, SCOPE AND AUTHORITY OF ADOPTED FARE RESOLUTION

A. Authority to Fix Rates and Charges

The Governing Board of El Dorado Transit is authorized to fix the rates and
charges for all transit services. (PUC § 102285 and PUC § 99268)

B. Passenger Service Covered By Fare Structure

El Dorado Transit may provide transit service for the transportation of passengers
and their incidental baggage by any means, both within and outside the El Dorado
Transit boundaries.  (PUC § 102280)  This Fare Structure pertains to all fixed
route, demand-response, Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) complementary
paratransit and commuter service provided by El Dorado Transit.

C. Fare Evasion

Evasion of the payment of any fares; or, the misuse of passes, or tickets, with the
intent to evade the payment of fares is an infraction punishable by a fine not to
exceed the maximum punishment allowed by law. (Penal Code § 640)

II. FARE STRUCTURE DEFINITIONS

A. Authorized Employee

“Authorized Employee” means those persons authorized by Executive Director to
issue temporary passes.
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 B. Business Day 
 

“Business Day” means a weekday which is not a national or state holiday observed 
by either the United States, the State of California, El Dorado County, County of 
Sacramento, or the City of Sacramento. 

 
 C. Child 
 

“Child” means a person who has not yet reached his or her sixth (6th) birthday. 
 

D. Complementary Paratransit    
 
 Method allowed by the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) for the transit 

operator to provide demand response (dial-a-ride) during fixed route service hours 
upon request. 

  
E. Disabled 
 

The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) defines a disability as a physical or 
mental impairment that substantially limits one or more of the major life activities 
of an individual. Major life activities include caring for one’s self, performing 
manual tasks, walking, seeing, hearing, speaking, breathing, learning and working.  
Proof of disability may be established upon boarding by displaying an El Dorado 
Transit issued I.D. card, an eligibility card issued by another transit agency or a 
Medicare card presented along with a valid State issued photo I.D. At the time of 
card issuance, persons with disabilities and Medicare cardholders must provide 
either a Medicare card, a DMV disabled placard identification card issued pursuant 
to Section 22511.5 of the Vehicle Code, a Social Security disabled benefits award 
letter, an El Dorado Transit certification form completed and signed by a physician 
or authorized representative or any other identification as approved by local, state 
or federal jurisdictions along with a valid State issued photo I.D. 

  
 F. Personal Care Attendant (PCA) 
 

“Personal Care Attendant (PCA)” means a person who assists a disabled person 
during their trip on El Dorado Transit vehicles. Disabled passengers may be 
required to display an El Dorado Transit issued I.D. card affixed with an assistant 
symbol. 
 

 G. Fare 
 

“Fare” means the price charged to transport a passenger, including the passenger’s 
incidental baggage, for one ride on a transit vehicle operating on fixed route, 
demand response, paratransit or commuter service. 
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H. Employee Pass 
 

“Employee Pass” means an El Dorado Transit I.D. card issued to El Dorado 
Transit employees. 

 
 I. Fare Equivalent 
 

“Fare Equivalent” means an El Dorado Transit approved substitute for U.S. 
currency that may be applied toward the applicable fare by depositing it in the 
farebox or tapping a loaded Connect Card upon boarding an El Dorado Transit 
bus. (i.e. El Dorado Transit issued scrip) 

 
 J. Scrip Ticket 
 

“Scrip Ticket” means a single paper scrip issued by El Dorado Transit with a 
printed denomination appearing thereon. 

 
 K. Fiscal Year 
 

“Fiscal Year” means the period from July 1 of the first year stated through June 30 
of the second year stated. 

  
 L. Fixed Route Service 
 

“Fixed Route Service” means passenger service provided by El Dorado Transit 
vehicles in revenue service along a scheduled route, whether or not on a 
continuous, seasonal, experimental, or emergency basis.   

 
 M. Holiday 
 

“Holiday” means the day of observance of a holidays as approved by El Dorado 
Transit. 
 

N. Lifetime Pass 
 

“Lifetime Pass” means an El Dorado Transit identification card issued to persons 
eighty (80) years of age or older. The Lifetime Pass entitles the individual to 
unlimited rides on any local fixed route service. 

 
 O. Monthly Pass 
 

“Monthly Pass” means either an El Dorado Transit issued card or other approved 
I.D. card to which a monthly stamp is affixed, with the month and year printed on 
the card by El Dorado Transit.  Exception:  Lifetime passes. 
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 P. Daily Pass 
 

“Daily Pass” means either an El Dorado Transit issued card or ticket or other 
approved card to which a specified service date or stamp is affixed on the card by 
El Dorado Transit. 

 
 Q. Octogenarian 
 

“Octogenarian” means a person 80 years of age or older.  Proof of age may be 
established upon boarding by displaying an El Dorado Transit Lifetime Pass and/or 
a valid Identification Card that includes a picture and identifies the person’s age. 

   
R.     Payment 

 
  “Payment” means one of the following: 
 

1. The deposit of the applicable fare in U.S. currency or fare equivalents in the 
farebox upon boarding a transit revenue service vehicle; or 

 
2. Displaying appropriate proof of payment, such as fare media provided by El 

Dorado Transit upon boarding an El Dorado Transit revenue service vehicle, 
provided that the displayed proof of payment is valid at the time of boarding. 

 
3. Tapping a Connect Card onto the tap box upon boarding an El Dorado Transit 

bus or van with the appropriate fare being deducted from the card or the 
appropriate pass already loaded on the card. 

 
 S. Peace Officer 
 

“Peace Officer” means any person currently employed by a public agency as a 
peace officer as defined in California Penal Code Sections 830.1 and 830.2. 
 

 T. Prepaid Fare 
 

“Prepaid Fare” means a fare that is paid before boarding a transit vehicle and is 
one for which proof of payment is required by El Dorado Transit. 

 
U. Proof of Payment 

 
“Proof of Payment” means the evidence of a prepaid fare that must be displayed by 
a passenger whenever required or permitted by this Fare Structure resolution in 
lieu of depositing the applicable fare in U.S. currency or fare equivalents in the 
farebox upon boarding an El Dorado Transit revenue service vehicle. 

 
 
 
 

21



 

 

 V. Retiree 
 

Employee retired from El Dorado Transit with a minimum of five (5) years of 
employment with El Dorado Transit. 
 

W. Ride 
 

“Ride” means a continuous one-way passenger trip between any two points served 
by El Dorado Transit on fixed route, demand response or commuter service 
without transferring to another transit vehicle. 

  
X. RT 

 
  “RT” means the Sacramento Regional Transit District. 
 

Y. Senior Citizen 
 

“Senior Citizen” means a person 60 years of age or older.  Proof of age may be 
established upon boarding by displaying an El Dorado Transit I.D. card, an 
eligibility card issued by another transit agency, a State Department of Motor 
Vehicles Driver’s License or Identification card issued pursuant to subdivision (b) 
of Section 13000 of the California Vehicle Code, or a passport which includes a 
picture and identifies the person’s age. 

 
 Z. Student 
 

“Student” is a person aged six (6) to nineteen (19), who has not completed a 
program resulting in a high school diploma or attainment of a General Education 
Diploma (G.E.D.) or California High School Proficiency Exam (CHSPE) and 
attends a day program of 240 minutes per day or is enrolled in a certified home 
school program supervised by an adult if under age sixteen (16) years of age. Also 
referred to as K-12. Proof of eligibility may be established upon boarding by 
displaying an El Dorado Transit I.D. card or an eligibility card issued by another 
transit agency. 
 
To be eligible for an El Dorado Transit issued student pass, El Dorado Transit 
requires the production of a valid student I.D. card or other similar evidence of 
enrollment by the person requesting such a pass. 

 
 AA. Transit Vehicle 
 

“Transit Vehicle” means an El Dorado Transit revenue service vehicle. 
 

 BB. Validated 
 

“Validated” means the process of fixing the date of expiration on an El Dorado 
Transit ticket by an El Dorado Transit driver or authorized staff member. 
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CC. Student Access Card 
 

The Los Rios Community College District student access card and the California 
State University Sacramento student card with commuter sleeve entitle individuals 
to unlimited rides on any local fixed route service and $1.00 off the standard rate 
for commuter routes.    
 

DD. Revenue Service 
 

“Revenue service” includes but is not limited to: local fixed routes, demonstration 
projects and emergency transportation at the direction of the Office of Emergency 
Services or other authorized emergency response teams. Charter service is 
excluded as defined by applicable local, state and federal statutes. 

 
 III. CONSTRUCTION OF FARE STRUCTURE 
 
 A. Applicable Fare 
 

Applicable fare means the price established as set forth in Article VI as a condition 
of carrying one passenger on any transit vehicle for one ride on fixed route, 
commuter, ADA complementary paratransit or dial-a-ride service. 

 
 B. Fare Payment 
 

The applicable fare shall be paid by all persons riding on El Dorado Transit 
revenue service vehicles. 
 
Fares on El Dorado Transit bus service must be paid upon boarding by either 
depositing into the farebox U.S. currency or fare equivalents in the amount of the 
applicable fare, or the passenger shall display appropriate proof of payment valid 
at the time of boarding in the form of a pass or a tap of their Connect Card. 
 

C.         Appropriate Proof of Payment 
 

Appropriate proof of payment means the evidence of fare prepayment that 
constitutes the applicable fare.  Proof of payment may constitute any one of the 
following: 
1. Monthly pass issued by El Dorado Transit including, when applicable, a 

monthly stamp affixed to the pass; or 
2. El Dorado Transit scrip ticket; or 
3. El Dorado Transit employee pass; or 
4. Lifetime pass; or 
5. Daily pass; or 
6. Peace officer identification; or 
7. El Dorado Transit retiree pass/id, or 
8. Fare media approved by Executive Director within adopted fare structure 
9. Connect Card 
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 D. Fare Equivalent 
 

Fare equivalent is an El Dorado Transit issued scrip ticket or free ride ticket issued 
by an authorized agent of El Dorado Transit. 

 
 E. Valid Proof of Payment 
 

Proof of payment issued by El Dorado Transit is valid as provided below: 
 

1. Monthly Pass/Stamp – An El Dorado Transit monthly pass shall be valid 
only for the month of the year printed by El Dorado Transit either on the 
pass or on the stamp to be affixed on an approved photo I.D. card.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, a monthly pass shall be valid from the first 
day to the last day of the month. 

 
2. Lifetime Pass – A lifetime pass issued to persons 80 years of age or older 

shall be valid during the life of the pass holder. 
 
3. Student Pass – A student pass issued by El Dorado Transit shall be valid 

only to the student issued the pass for the term specified on the pass 
 
4.      Peace Officer Identification – A peace officer badge or photo identification 

card issued by a public agency is valid for so long as the bearer of such 
badge or photo identification is employed by the issuing public entity as a 
peace officer. 

 
5. El Dorado Transit Retiree Pass/ID issued by EDCTA 

 
IV. FARE STRUCTURE CLASSIFICATIONS 
 
 A. Basic Fare 
 

The basic fare shall be in the amount set forth in Article VI.  Any passenger paying 
the basic fare shall be entitled to one ride upon paying the fare.  

 
 B. Discount Fare 
 
  Discount fare classifications are established as hereinbelow provided: 
 

 Disabled Persons, Senior Citizens and Students K-12 – The discount rate for 
disabled persons, senior citizens and students K-12 shall be in the amount set forth 
in Article VI.  Only disabled persons, senior citizens and students K-12 are entitled 
to one ride on fixed route service upon displaying the proper disabled, senior 
citizens or student K-12 I.D. Card or required documentation set forth in Article II 
and payment of the fare set forth in Article VI.   
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 C. Child Fare 
 

One (1) child age zero (0) to five (5) may ride at no cost with an adult that pays a 
fare or uses a valid prepaid fare media.  If more than one (1) child is accompanying 
one passenger, the passenger shall pay the discount fare for the second and each 
additional child. 
 

 D. Special Services 
 

Special services are fixed route service provided under contract between El Dorado 
Transit and a third party.  Special services are open to the public upon payment of 
the applicable fare.  Unless otherwise indicated below, the fare for special services 
shall be in accordance with the fare structure classifications as set forth in this 
Article VI. Fares shall not be collected for special service if the cost of such 
service is paid under the terms of a contract. 
 

 E. Octogenarian Fare 
 

Persons 80 years of age or older are entitled to ride all fixed route service for free 
upon displaying the proper identification card. Free rides are not available for 
commuter or demand response services. 

 
 F. El Dorado Transit Retiree Fare 
 

Persons retired from El Dorado Transit under El Dorado Transit retirement policy 
are entitled to ride all fixed route and commuter service for free upon displaying 
the proper pass/identification card. 

  
V. FARE PREPAYMENT 

  
 A. Basic Monthly Pass 
 

The basic monthly pass consists of either an El Dorado Transit issued monthly 
pass card or an approved card to which an El Dorado Transit monthly stamp is 
affixed. This pass entitles the bearer to ride on all fixed route and commuter 
services, subject to the following limitations and conditions: 
 
1. The pass may be purchased from El Dorado Transit or designated El 

Dorado Transit pass outlets by any person; and 
2. The pass is valid only on specified services during the month of the year 

printed by El Dorado Transit on the pass or stamp that is affixed to the 
bearer’s approved card.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, a monthly pass 
shall be valid through the first day of month through the last day of the 
month; and 
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3 The monthly pass constitutes prepayment of the basic fare or any fare 
established in an amount lower than the basic fare of the service for which 
it is valid; and 

 
4. The monthly pass card or monthly stamp shall be non-refundable and non-

exchangeable and shall be sold for the amount established in Article VI. El 
Dorado Transit is not responsible for lost or stolen passes. 

 
 B. Discount Monthly Pass 
 

The discount monthly pass consists of an El Dorado Transit monthly pass card. 
This entitles the bearer to ride all fixed route services, subject to the following 
limitations and conditions: 
 
1. This pass may be purchased only by disabled persons, senior citizens and 

students K-12; and 
 
2. This pass is valid only during the month of the year printed by El Dorado 

Transit on the card. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a discount monthly 
pass shall be valid from the first day through the last day of the month; and 

 
3.  For disabled persons, senior citizens, and students K-12, this pass 

 constitutes prepayment of the discount fare or any fare established  in any  
 amount lower than the discount fare of the service for which it is valid; and 

 
4. The discount monthly pass is non-refundable, non-exchangeable and non-

transferable and shall be sold for the amount established in Article VI.  El 
Dorado Transit is not responsible for lost or stolen passes. 

 
C. Basic Day Pass 

 
The Basic Day Pass consists of an El Dorado Transit daily pass card. This entitles 
the bearer to ride all fixed route services subject to the following limitations and 
conditions.  
 
1.  The pass may be purchased from El Dorado Transit drivers or at the El 

Dorado Transit office on the day of the pass; and 
 
2. The pass is valid only on specified services during the day of the month 

printed by El Dorado Transit on the pass or stamp that is affixed to the 
bearer’s approved card or loaded onto the bearer’s Connect Card. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, a daily pass shall be valid from the first 
pick-up of the day through the last drop-off of the day on the local fixed 
routes; and 
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3. The daily pass constitutes prepayment of the basic fare or any fare 
established in an amount lower than the basic fare of the service for which 
it is valid; and 

 
4. The daily pass card or daily stamp shall be non-refundable and non-

exchangeable and shall be sold for the amount established in Article VI. El 
Dorado Transit is not responsible for lost or stolen passes. 

 
 D. Discount Day Pass 
 

The Discount Day Pass consists of an El Dorado Transit daily pass card. This 
entitles the bearer to ride all fixed route services subject to the following 
limitations and conditions.  

 
1.  This pass may be purchased only by disabled persons, senior citizens and 

students K-12; and 
 
2. This pass is valid only on specified services during the day of the month 

printed by El Dorado Transit on the pass or stamp that is affixed to the 
bearer’s approved card or loaded onto the bearer’s Connect Card.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, a daily pass shall be valid from the first 
pick-up of the specified service day through the last drop-off of the 
specified service day on the local fixed routes; and 

 
3. For disabled persons, senior citizens, and students K-12, this pass 

constitutes prepayment of the discount fare or any fare established  in any 
amount lower than the discount fare of the service for which it is valid; and 

 
4. The discount daily pass card or daily stamp shall be non-refundable and 

non-exchangeable and shall be sold for the amount established in Article 
VI. El Dorado Transit is not responsible for lost or stolen passes. 

 
 E. Employee Pass 
 

A valid El Dorado Transit employee I.D. card entitles the lawful bearer to ride on 
all fixed route and commuter service at no charge. 

 
F.  Retiree Pass 

 
A valid El Dorado Transit Retiree I.D. entitles an El Dorado Transit retiree to ride 
all fixed route and commuter services at no charge. 

 
 G. Lifetime Pass 
 

A lifetime pass consists of an El Dorado Transit I.D. card and is issued only to 
persons 80 years of age or older.  A lifetime pass entitles the bearer and the 
bearer’s Personal Care Attendant (PCA) to ride for free on all local fixed route 
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service and is valid during the life of the passholder.  A lifetime pass is non-
transferable and non-exchangeable. 

 
 H. Peace Officer Identification 
 

A valid peace officer identification consists of a badge or photo identification card 
issued by a public agency to persons employed as peace officers.  A peace officer 
identification entitles the bearer to ride on all fixed route service at no charge. 

 
 I. Scrip Ticket 
 

All scrip tickets will be sold for the price corresponding to the denomination 
appearing on the ticket.   
  

 J. I.D. Cards 
 

I.D. cards may be acquired by those persons participating in a monthly pass 
subsidy program; and disabled persons, senior citizens, Octogenarians, and 
students who meet the eligibility criteria set forth in Article II and Transit 
Advisory Committee members. Unless the I.D. card is issued to the Octogenarians 
or is provided by a subsidizing agency through contractual arrangement with El 
Dorado Transit, the price of the I.D. cards shall be Five Dollars ($5.00).   

 
VI. FARE AND MONTHLY PASS PRICING 

 
Effective: July 1, 2017January 1, 2019 

 
A. Local Fixed Routes  

 
Route 20-Placerville, Route 25-Saturday Express, Route 30-Diamond Springs, 
Route 35-Diamond Springs Saturday, Route 40-Cameron Park, Route 50x-50 
Express, Route 60-Pollock Pines, Route 70-El Dorado Hills and other fixed routes 
as developed. 

 
One-Way Fare: General… $1.50      Senior/Disabled/Student K-12….$0.75 
 
Daily Pass:  General… $6.00      Senior/Disabled/Student K-12….$3.00 

 
Monthly Pass*: General… $60.00    Senior/Disabled/Student K-12...$30.00 
 
*Passengers may purchase an RT combination pass for local fixed routes for 
$110.00 for standard rate and $805.00 for discount rate. 
 
 

B.  Grizzly Flat Route: 
 

One Way Fare:    General… $10.00      Senior/Disabled/Student K-12… $5.00 
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B. Sacramento Commuter Routes: 
 

Sacramento        $5.00 One-way fare 
College Student with I.D.      $4.00 One-way fare 
Monthly Sacramento Commuter Pass    $180.00 
Monthly Combination El Dorado Transit/RT   $2150.00 

 
C. Dial-A-Ride (DAR) and Senior Day Care: 

 
DAR and Senior Day Care fares based on mileage of trip from pickup location to 
drop off location:  
 
Up to four (4) miles     $2.00 One-way fare 
More than four (4) miles    additional $0.50 fare per mile 

 
Zone A:  Senior/Disabled $ 2.00 one way 
Zone A:  General Public  $ 4.00 one way 
Zone B-E: Senior/Disabled $ 3.00 one way + $ 0.50 per zone crossing                                       
Zone B-E: General Public  $ 5.00 one way + $ 1.00 per zone crossing 
Zone F-L: Senior/Disabled $ 5.00 one way + $ 0.50 per zone crossing 
Zone F-L: General Public  Not Applicable 
Senior Day Care   $2.00 per one way fare in DAR zone A 
Senior Day Care   $3.00 per one way fare in all DAR zones 
except zone A 

 
D. Sac-Med: 

 
Sac-Med Service   $10.00 One-way fare 

 
E. ADA Complementary Paratransit: 

 
ADA Complementary Paratransit   $3.00 One-way fare 

 
VII. Fare structures for demonstration projects shall be set by the Executive Director for a 

period not to exceed twelve (12) months.  After a twelve (12) month period, El Dorado 
Transit will review and consider for adoption, a fare structure for any new service 
developed through such demonstration project. 
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PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE EL DORADO 
COUNTY TRANSIT AUTHORITY at a regular meeting of said Board, held on February 2, 
2017December 6, 2018 by the following vote of said Board: 
 
AYES:  NOES:  ABSTAIN:  ABSENT:     
   
 
_________________________________________                                                                           
Shiva Frentzen, Chairperson     
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________________                                                                                                                                                                      
Megan Wilcher, Secretary to the Board  

30



El Dorado County Transit Authority 
December 6, 2018 Agenda 

AGENDA ITEM 1 E  
Consent Item 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:  December 6, 2018 
 
TO:   El Dorado County Transit Authority 
 
FROM:  Megan Wilcher, Administrative Coordinator 
 
SUBJECT: El Dorado County Transit Authority Board of Directors 
 Proposed Meeting Schedule for 2019 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 
BY MOTION,  

Approve El Dorado County Transit Authority Board of Directors 
Proposed Meeting Schedule for 2019 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
According to the El Dorado County Transit Authority (El Dorado Transit) Bylaws 4.1, “The Board 
of Directors shall have regular meetings at least once every two months.  The dates for such 
meetings shall be determined by the Board.”    
 
El Dorado Transit typically meets the first Thursday of every month at 1:00 P.M. at the County of 
El Dorado, Board of Supervisors Meeting Room, 330 Fair Lane, Building A in Placerville.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The proposed 2019 meeting schedule is attached for discussion and direction.   
 
Due to the July 4th Holiday and the Board of Supervisors 2019 schedule indicating no regular 
meeting that week, staff recommends cancelling the July 4, 2019 meeting. 
 
The proposed 2019 meeting schedule is tentative pending approval of the final meeting calendar 
for the City of Placerville City Council. 
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Attachment A 
EL DORADO COUNTY TRANSIT AUTHORITY  
PROPOSED MEETING SCHEDULE FOR 2019 

 
Proposed Meeting Schedule 2019 Comments 

 
No meeting January 2019 

 

 
Thursday, February 7, 2019 

 

 
Thursday, March 7, 2019 

 

 
Thursday, April 4, 2019 

 

 
Thursday, May 2, 2019 

 
 

 
Thursday, June 6, 2019 

 

Thursday, July 4, 2019 
July 4th is a Holiday, propose 
cancellation of meeting 

 
Thursday, August 1, 2019 

 

 
Thursday, September 5, 2019 

 
Monday September 2nd is Labor Day 

 
Thursday, October 3, 2019 

 

 
Thursday, November 7, 2019 

 

 
Thursday, December 5, 2019 

 
 

 
El Dorado County Transit Authority board meetings are held at 1:00 P.M. at County of El Dorado, 
Board of Supervisors Meeting Room, 330 Fair Lane, Building A in Placerville. 
 
Note: Dates are tentative pending final meeting calendar approval for Placerville City Council. 
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El Dorado County Transit Authority 
December 6, 2018 Agenda 
 

AGENDA ITEM 1 F 
Consent Item 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:  December 6, 2018 
 
TO:   El Dorado County Transit Authority 
 
FROM:  Mindy Jackson, Executive Director 
 
SUBJECT: Authorize the Executive Director or her designee to enter into 

preliminary discussions with property owners and representatives 
regarding the acquisition of all or part of the following subject 
parcels, as identified in the County Line Multi-modal Transit Center 
Study, including ordering preliminary title reports and right of way 
valuations; Site 2, Site 3, Site 5 and Site 6. 

 
REQUESTED ACTION: 
BY MOTION, 

Authorize the Executive Director or her designee to enter into 
preliminary discussions with property owners and representatives 
regarding the acquisition of all or part of the following subject parcels 
as identified in the County Line Multimodal Transit Center Study, 
including the ordering of and payment for preliminary title reports 
and right of way valuations;  
Site 2: APN 117-160-055 and 056, El Dorado Hills Investors, LTD  
Site 3: APN 117-180-004, Jackson II, LLC 
Site 5: APN 121-280-024, Huddinge Partners 
Site 6: APN 122-720-015, County of El Dorado 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
The El Dorado County Transit Authority (El Dorado Transit) Board of Directors has previously 
been briefed on the efforts of the El Dorado County Transportation Commission (EDCTC) and 
their sub-consultants, Fehr & Peers and AIM Consulting, to provide public workshops and 
perform a detailed study of the options for providing a new multi-modal transit facility in the El 
Dorado Hills area. 

 
DISCUSSION 
 
Based on a presentation and the overview included as Attachment #1 of the draft County Line 
Multimodal Transit Center Study, six (6) possible sites were identified and studied. Of those 
sites, Sites 2 and 3 were recommended as having the best potential for development of the transit 
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El Dorado County Transit Authority 
December 6, 2018 Agenda 
 

center, Sites 5 and 6 were recommended for consideration, and Sites 1 and 4 are not 
recommended for any further study or consideration. 
 
To enable Fehr and Peers to complete the Transit Center Study, it is necessary for consultants 
and El Dorado Transit staff to have the ability and authority to directly contact the subject 
property owners, to determine their willingness, interest and level of cooperation should their 
property be considered the best site for acquisition for the transit facility. It will also be 
important to determine if there are any constraints related to the subject parcels, which could 
include items of record (easements, setbacks, CC&R’s), as well as any conditions or restrictions 
that might be imposed by the subject property owners as part of the sale of all or a portion of 
their property. 
 
The requested action will allow the Executive Director or her designee to proceed with the 
ordering of preliminary title reports, which will provide El Dorado Transit staff and consultants 
with the technical and legal information necessary for final analysis of the development potential 
of each subject property. Also, the requested action would allow for preliminary valuations of the 
subject parcels, although a complete certified appraisal would not be done until later in an 
acquisition process. And most importantly, the requested action allows the Executive Director or 
her designee to have direct contact with the subject property owners to determine their level of 
cooperation and identify any parcel-specific constraints. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The cost for preliminary title reports is estimated to be less than $1,000 per parcel, for a total 
allocation of $4,000. Requests for informal bids would be circulated to all local title companies, 
prior to ordering any title services. Valuation estimates (Right of Way Data Sheets) are estimated 
to be $1,500 each, for a total of $6,000. 
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recommended for consideration, and  not recommended, as discussed below. 

Recommended Sites: 

Sites 2 and 3 are both recommended as they scored good/fair in almost all criteria. Strong site characteristics include 
automobile, bicycle and pedestrian accessibility, a large parcel size that can accommodate bus loading, buildings, and existing 
and future parking demand, and location as both sites have the highest residential or employment density located within 
proximity to existing and planned development including Town Center East, the El Dorado Hills Business Park and residential 
development.

Recommended for Consideration: 

Sites 5 and 6 are recommended for consideration with appropriate parcel sizes that can accommodate bus loading, buildings, 
and existing and future parking demand. They have easy to access from US 50 or the future Capital Southeast Connector. 
However, due to location, both sites lack pedestrian and bicycle accessibility, have the lowest residential and employment 
density, and have poor interaction with neighboring parcels. The steeper terrain may also create challenges for site layout and 
ADA accessibility. 

Not Recommended:

Sites 1 and 4 are not recommended as they do not meet many of the criteria needed for the Multi-Modal Transit Center. The 
small parcel size of site 1, which is the existing park-and-ride lot, constrains the ability to provide adequate parking without 
a parking garage, which may be infeasible due to the presence of existing overhead power lines. Site 4 ranked poorly due to 
its location within the far corner Town Center East. It is diffi  cult to access for vehicles, pedestrians and bicyclists, and has poor 
visibility to surrounding uses. 

Overview 
Figure 1 - Potential Site Map

Six sites, identifi ed in Figure 1, were evaluated based on multiple criteria to determine which sites are most appropriate for the 
Multi-Modal Transit Center. After analyzing the results of the evaluation, sites were grouped into three tiers: recommended, 
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County Line Multi-Modal Transit Center Study

Goals Analysis Factor Site 1 Site 2 Site 3 Site 4 Site 5 Site 6

RECOMMENDED SITES

Multi-Modal 
Transportation

Proximity to US 50

Proximity to Capital Southeast Connector

Limited Number of Turning Movements Required 
to Access Site

Limited Number of Left Turns Required to
Access Site

Bicycle Accessibility

Bicycle  Comfort

Ability to Accommodate Necessary Parking

Roadway Access

Frontage Loading Potential

Connection to Other Transit

High Levels of 
Pedestrian Priority

Pedestrian Accessibility

Pedestrian Comfort

Urban Density and 
Use Intensity

Residential Density

Employment Density

Economic Vitality, 
Competitiveness, and 

Cost Eff ectiveness

Size

Opportunity for Transit-Oriented Development 
on Adjacent Parcels

Adjacent Land Designated for Development

Compatibility with Adjacent Transit Supportive 
Uses

Proximity to Major Retail

Proximity to Convenience Retail

Ability to Accommodate Electric Vehicles

Ability to Accommodate Solar

Opportunity to Utilize Existing Infrastructure

Zoning Consistency

Minimal Potential Environmental Constraints

Minimal Potential Terrain Constraints

Minimal Potential Utility Constraints

Strong Sense of Place
Proximity to Public Spaces

Site Visibility

Embedded 
Technology

Ability to Accommodate Interactive Maps, Real 
Time GPS, and Other Technology

Ability to Accommodate Transportation Network 
Company Pick-Up/Drop-Off 

Ability to Implement Successful 
Bike Share

 Good      Fair      Poor
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AGENDA ITEM 1 G 
Consent Item 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:  December 6, 2018 
 
TO:   El Dorado County Transit Authority 
 
FROM:  Julie Petersen, Finance Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Receive and File Fiscal Year 2017/18 Independent Financial  
   Audit, Single Audit and Compliance Reports 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 
BY MOTION,   
 Receive and File Independent Financial Audit, Single Audit 

and Compliance Reports for Fiscal Year 2017/18 for the El 
Dorado County Transit Authority 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The El Dorado County Transportation Commission (EDCTC) is responsible to ensure 
that the El Dorado County Transit Authority (El Dorado Transit), as a Transportation 
Development Act (TDA) claimant, annually submits an independent financial audit per 
Public Utilities Commission Code 99245.  The fiscal and compliance audits are 
performed in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles by a certified 
public accounting firm and include a determination of compliance with TDA rules and 
regulations.  The El Dorado Transit fiscal year (FY) 2017/18 compliance audit and single 
audit are included in the EDCTC Overall Work Program. 
 
EDCTC awarded a contract to Richardson & Company to produce compliance audits and 
reports for all FY 2017/18 TDA claimants including El Dorado Transit.     
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Ingrid Sheipline and Bob Simons of Richardson & Company are scheduled to present the 
Financial and Compliance audits to El Dorado Transit Chair Shiva Frentzen and Vice 
Chair Mark Acuna on December 3, 2018.  El Dorado Transit staff attending will be 
Mindy Jackson, Executive Director and Julie Petersen, Finance Manager. Discussion 
items will include the following: 
 

Richardson & Company reports that under the generally accepted auditing 
standards; El Dorado Transit received a clean opinion.  
 
There were eight (8) proposed adjustments made by the auditors including; 
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Two (2) adjustments surrounding the implementation of GASB 68 as outlined in 
the Financial Statements.  
Response: This is a requirement as set forth by GASB.    
 
One (1) adjustment to capture true up for State Transit Assistance (STA) 
allocations. 
Response: Final Adjustment for allocation received by the State Controllers’ 
Office and interest earnings. 
 
Two (2) adjustment to true-up capital assets and related accumulated depreciation 
expenses. 
Response: Final Adjustment to correct recording error. 
 
One (1) adjustment to reclassify Net Assets invested in Property, Plant and 
Equipment (PPE) to unrestricted. 
Response: Final Adjustment to correct recording error. 
 
One (1) adjustment to segregate fair shuttle revenues between fares and grant 
revenue. 
Response: Separation of revenues between grant and Fair Association. 
 
One (1) adjustment to Reclassifying the current portion of compensated absences.  
Response: This is required each year to break out the current portion of the total 
liability, potentially due within one (1) year. 
 

Included in the Audited Financial Statements are a Financial Audit and Compliance 
Reports.  
 
FINANCIAL AUDIT 
 
El Dorado Transit staff is pleased to report that the FY 2017/18 Independent Financial 
Audit has identified no material weaknesses.  
 
The financial audit is a measure of financial activity and compliance to government code 
during the given fiscal period.  Highlights include net assets of El Dorado Transit 
exceeding its liabilities by $14,100,624 with unrestricted net asset of $169,818.  It is the 
opinion of management that the unrestricted net assets indicate a good fiscal condition for 
El Dorado Transit. 
 
COMPLIANCE REPORT 
 
The audit report states with regard to the laws, regulations and provisions of the TDA, the 
Public Transportation Modernization Improvement and Service Enhancement Account 
(PTMISEA), and the California Transit Security Grant Program (CTSGP), and the Low 
Carbon-Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) applicable to El Dorado Transit, “The 
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results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.”  
 
SINGLE AUDIT 
 
El Dorado Transit staff is pleased to report that the FY 2017/18 Independent Single Audit 
identified no material weaknesses. 
 
The Single Audit is a report of internal control over financial reporting and on 
compliance and other matters based on an audit of financial statements performed in 
accordance with government auditing standards.  The “trigger” for a single audit is an 
agency receiving over $750,000 of federal funding in one fiscal year. El Dorado Transit 
received $1,948,061 in federal funding during FY 2017/18 that included one (1) 
operating assistance grant and four (4) capital assistance grants for rolling stock. 
 
The primary function of a Single Audit is to review internal controls, purchasing 
procedures and reporting standards of agencies receiving federal grant funds.  The Single 
Audit beginning on page 46 expresses that El Dorado Transit is in compliance with 
regard to Compliance; Internal Control over Compliance; and Schedule of Expenditures 
of Federal Awards.  
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MANAGEMENT LETTER 

To the Board of Directors and Management 
El Dorado County Transit Authority  
Placerville, California 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the El Dorado County Transit Authority 
(the Authority) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, we considered the Authority’s internal control over financial 
reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control.  

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Authority’s 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses.  Given these 
limitations during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be 
material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  

We noted no matters involving internal control and its operation for your consideration. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Directors 
and others within the organization, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than 
these specified parties. 

 
November 30, 2018 
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GOVERNANCE LETTER 

To the Board of Directors 
El Dorado County Transit Authority 
Diamond Springs, California 

We have audited the financial statements of the El Dorado County Transit Authority (the Authority) for 
the year ended June 30, 2018. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about 
our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, as well as certain information related to 
the planned scope and timing of our audit.  Professional standards also require that we communicate to 
you the following information related to our audit. 

Our Responsibilities under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards 

As stated in our engagement letter dated March 14, 2014, our responsibility, as described by professional 
standards, is to express opinions about whether the financial statements prepared by management with 
your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your 
responsibilities. 

In planning and performing our audit, we will consider the Authority’s internal control over financial 
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the 
financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we will perform tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grants. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions is 
not an objective of our audit. 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements; therefore, our audit involves judgment about the number of transactions to be 
examined and the areas to be tested. 

Our audit included obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment, including internal 
control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the 
nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. Material misstatements may result from (1) errors, 
(2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental 
regulations that are attributable to the entity or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of 
the entity.  We noted no internal control issues as a result of our audit. 
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Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by the Authority are described in Note A to the financial statements.  The 
Authority adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 75, Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions as of July 1, 2017, which 
resulted in the Authority recording a restatement of beginning net position at July 1, 2017 to record an 
other postemployment benefit (OPEB) liability related to health benefits provided to retirees as discussed 
in Note H of the financial statements.  Implementation of GASB No. 75 resulted in the recording of an 
OPEB liability of $246,645 and deferred outflows of $55,642 as of July 1, 2017, which reduced net 
position by $191,003.  Additional required disclosures under GASB Statement No. 75 were also added to 
Note H to the financial statements due to the adoption of this Statement.  The application of existing 
policies was not changed during the year.  We noted no transactions entered into by the Authority during 
the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.  All significant transactions have 
been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about 
future events.  Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 
significantly from those expected.  The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements include 
the need for an allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable, depreciable lives and methods used for 
depreciating capital assets, the current portion of the liability for compensated absences, the amount of 
reserve for claims and claims expenses, the pension liability and other postemployment benefits liability.  
The Authority has an administrator for their self-insurance program that develops the estimate of the 
incurred but unreported claims liability based on the Authority’s historical experience.  The pension and 
other postemployment benefits liabilities are determined by actuarial valuations.  We evaluated the key 
factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates in determining that they are reasonable in 
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.  
Management has corrected all such misstatements.  In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a 
result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the 
aggregate.  We proposed six adjustments to the Authority’s financial statements consisting of the 
following: 

 Revised amounts recorded for the net pension liability and related deferred inflows/outflows 

 Accrued additional State Transit Assistance revenue equal to the amount of the allocation 

 Recognized all remaining Local Transportation Fund deferred revenue as amounts were earned 

 Segregated fair shuttle revenues between fares and grant revenue 

 Reclassified of current portion of compensated absences for reporting purposes 

 Correct amounts reflected as capital asset disposals and related depreciation 42
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Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting or 
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial 
statements or the auditor’s report.  We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the 
course of the audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated November 30, 2018. 

Management Consultations With Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations.  If a consultation involves 
application of an accounting principle to the Authority’s financial statements or a determination of the 
type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require 
the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts.  To 
our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Authority’s auditors.  However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a 
condition to our retention. 

Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information (RSI) listed in the table 
of contents, which are RSI that supplements the basic financial statements.  Our procedures consisted of 
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, 
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We did not audit the 
RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 

We were engaged to report on the Schedule of Operating Expenses, which accompany the financial 
statements but are not RSI.  With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of 
management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that 
the information complies with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is 
appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements.  We compared and 
reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the 
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 

Restriction on Use 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Authority and management of the Authority and is 
not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 
November 30, 2018 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors 
El Dorado County Transit Authority 
Diamond Springs, California 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the El Dorado County Transit Authority (the 
Authority), as of and for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s financial statements, as listed in the table of 
contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit 
Requirements for California Special Districts.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Authority as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 and the changes in financial position and 
cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America as well as accounting systems prescribed by the State Controller’s Office 
and state regulations governing special districts. 

Change in Accounting Principles 

As discussed in Note M to the financial statements, during the year ended June 30, 2018, the Authority 
adopted new accounting guidance, GASB No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.  Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s 
discussion and analysis and the required supplementary information on pages 39 through 42, as listed in 
the accompanying table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements. The supplementary information listed in 
the table of contents is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of the 
basic financial statements. 

The supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. 
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to 
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary 
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 30, 
2018 on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other 
matters including the Transportation Development Act and other State grant guidelines.  The purpose of 
that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over the effectiveness of the 
Authority’s financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an 
opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 
November 30, 2018 
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The management of the El Dorado County Transit Authority (the Authority) presents this 
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Authority for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2018. This section is designed to be read in conjunction with the 
Authority’s basic financial statements and the footnotes. 

The primary objective of the Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is to enhance 
the understandability and usefulness of this external financial audit report to the general 
public and oversight government bodies. 

Financial and Operational Highlights 

 Net assets of the Authority are $14,100,624. 

 $53,250 of unrestricted net position may be used to meet the Authority’s ongoing 
obligations to provide public transportation. The amount of unrestricted assets is 
directly affected by recognizing Pension and OPEB Liabilities as outlined in Note 
G and H. 

 Note E – Unearned Revenues, reports there are no unearned LTF funds at June 30, 
2018.  This is due in part to Pension and Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) 
Liabilities and increased operating expenses. 

Overview of Financial Statements 

The Authority submits proprietary fund financial statements under the enterprise 
accounting methodology. Enterprise funds account for service where all or a portion of the 
cost is recovered via user fees. Prepared under the accrual basis of accounting in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), revenues are recorded 
in the period in which they are earned and expenses are recognized in the period in which 
they are incurred. 

This report includes Balance Sheets, Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in 
Net Assets, Statements of Cash Flows, Supplementary Information and Compliance 
Reports.  These financial statements are prepared by independent auditors. Notes to the 
financial statements provide additional information that is essential for a reader to fully 
understand the financial data provided. 

The basic financial statements are designed to follow corporate presentation models. 

 The focus of the Balance Sheets is the total net resources available to continue 
providing public transportation services. This statement consolidates current 
spendable assets with capital assets. 

 The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets focus on the 
“bottom line results” of the Authority’s operations. The intent is to report the net 
cost of the Authority’s activities that are mainly supported by local sales taxes and 
passenger fares. 
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 The Statements of Cash Flows provides an accounting of cash receipts and cash 
payments that occurred during the fiscal year. This statement includes the cash 
effects on the Authority’s operations, financing and investment transactions. 

 Supplementary Information is a Schedule of Operating Expenses. 

 Compliance Reports are included as required. 

Financial Analysis 
 
The following schedule was prepared from the Authority’s Balance Sheets using the 
accrual basis of accounting. Assets purchased above $1,000 are capitalized and 
depreciated. Net position is the difference between liabilities and assets and are one 
measure of the financial health of the Authority. 

 

Summary of Net Assets
Increase

2018 2017 (Decrease)
Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources

Current Assets 8,114,666$    6,871,372$    1,243,294$    
Restricted Assets 1,526,719      1,718,083      (191,364)       
Capital Assets 13,930,806    11,901,199    2,029,607      

Total Assets 23,572,191    20,490,654    3,081,537      
Deferred Outflow of Resources 1,222,743      1,207,800      14,943          

Total Assets and Deferred
Outflow of Resources 24,794,934$  21,698,454$   3,096,480$    

Liabilities and Deferred Inflow of Resources

Current and Other Liabilities 6,794,295$    5,959,341$    834,954$      
Long-Term Liabilities 3,472,359      2,812,938      659,421        

Total Liabilities 10,266,654    8,772,279      1,494,375      
Deferred Inflow of Resources 427,656        283,582        144,074        

Total Liabilities and Deferred
 Inflow of Resources 10,694,310    9,055,861      1,638,449      

Net Position

Invested in Capital Assets 13,930,806    11,901,199    2,029,607      
Restricted 16,568          16,568          
Unrestricted 53,250          741,394        (688,144)       

Total Net Assets 14,000,624    12,642,593    1,358,031      

Total Liabilities and Net Position 24,694,934$  21,698,454$  2,996,480$    

50



EL DORADO COUNTY TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For Year Ended June 30, 2018 

6 

 
Changes from the prior year include increases to Current Assets and Capital Assets with a 
reduction to Restricted Assets. Increases to the Liabilities and Deferred Inflow of 
Resources and the corresponding Increase to Total Net Position. The total change in net 
position is an increase of $3,096,480. 

It is the opinion of management that unrestricted net assets of $53,250 are a positive 
indicator of the fiscal condition for the Authority. Based on projected future needs, the 
Authority can continue to operate under its current cash management methodology in all 
areas such as grant management, current and long term liability payments and operating 
expenses. 

The Balance Sheet reflects unearned revenue of $3,183,821 with details in the Notes to 
Financial Statements Note E; this is a reduction from the prior year of $2,130,676. The 
largest contributing factor for this change was the acquisition of five (5) vehicles using a 

Increase
2018 2017 (Decrease)

Operating Revenues 1,517,869$    1,583,433$    (65,564)$       
Operating Expenses 9,797,158      8,502,571      1,294,587      

Net Operating Loss (8,279,289)    (6,919,138)    (1,360,151)    

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Local Transportation Fund Allocation 4,159,003      4,694,462      (535,459)       
State Transit Assistance Allocation 1,494,506      1,494,506      
Federal Transit Administation Grants 487,448        479,675        7,773            
State and Local Operating Grant 113,224        203,536        (90,312)         
Interest Revenue 59,712          37,974          21,738          
Other Nonoperating Revenues 15,940          16,758          (818)             
Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets (80,087)         --                 (80,087)         

Total Non-Operating 
Revenues (Expenses) 6,249,746      5,432,405      817,341        

Loss Before Capital Contributions (2,029,543)    (1,486,733)    (542,810)       
Capital Contributions 3,678,577      4,541,758      (863,181)       
Change in Net Assets 1,649,034      3,055,025      (1,405,991)    
Net Position, Beginning of Year as originally    

stated 12,642,593    9,587,568      3,055,025      
Restatement (191,003)       (191,003)       
Net Position, Beginning of Year, restated 12,451,590    9,587,568      2,864,022      

Net Position, End of Year 14,100,624$  12,642,593$  1,458,031$    

Summary of Changes
in Net Assets
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variety of funding sources. Additional unearned revenue was expended on Safety and 
Security projects, Park & Ride projects and Operating Expenses. 
 
As noted, no Local Transportation Fund (LTF) funds were recognized as deferred. This 
represents eligible expenses for operating that exceeded the claimed amount. With the 
current requirement of reporting the Pension Liabilities and the additional accounting 
change of Other Post Employee Benefits (OPEB) liabilities being calculated similarly to 
the Pension liabilities; staff anticipates that future years will report no deferred LTF.  
 
It is the decision of management to recognize $1,494,506 as operating revenue in the 
current year. This is due in part to the recognition of Pension, OPEB and benefit expenses 
increases. 

Transportation Development Act (TDA) 

Enacted by the California legislature in 1972, the Mills-Alquist-Deddeh Act, better known 
as the Transportation Development Act (TDA) provides a major source of funding for 
public transportation implemented by regional transportation planning agencies. TDA 
statutes are under Government Code Title 3, Division 3, Chapter 2, Article 11 and Public 
Utilities Code Division 10, Part 11, Chapter 4, Articles 1 – 8. 

Each county establishes a Local Transportation Fund (LTF) for TDA purposes. LTF 
revenues are derived from ¼ cent of the retail sales tax dollars collected statewide. The 
State Board of Equalization returns the ¼ cent to each county according to the amount of 
tax collected within its boundaries.  As noted, the Authority utilizes all of the TDA 
available for transit.  TDA for transit operating is determined following the allocation of 
TDA to the Tahoe Region of El Dorado County, El Dorado County Auditor, Sacramento 
Area Council of Governments and El Dorado County Transportation Commission. 

Annual audits of TDA recipients include a compliance report to verify that the allocations 
are made within California Code of Regulations.  

The Authority is not a general fund recipient from either JPA member jurisdiction 
therefore; budget development includes a contingency for unplanned expenses at ten 
percent (10%) for the preliminary budget process.  The Authority approved a preliminary 
$770,812 contingency for fiscal year 2017/18. With the impact of the reallocation of an 
operating grant to capital and the recognition of the Pension Liability; it is management 
opinion that this practice is still appropriate and vital for cash flow purposes.  

Capital Assets 

At June 30, 2018, the Authority has invested $13,930,806 in buildings and improvements, 
transit vehicles and construction in progress, net of depreciation.  Additional information 
on the Authority’s capital assets is provided in Note C of the Notes to Financial Statements. 
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Long-Term Liabilities 

At June 30, 2018, the Authority’s noncurrent liabilities included one-half (1/2) of the 
accrued compensated employee absences and the Net Pension Liability, and the Net Other 
Post-Employment Benefit liabilities.  Additional information about the Authority’s long-
term liabilities is provided in Note D of the Notes to Financial Statements. 

Economic Factors and Related Budget Impact 

The ability to fund public transportation is closely related to the local and regional 
economies. Seventy-two percent (72%) of the Authority’s operating and non-operating 
revenues are TDA funds including LTF, State Transit Assistance (STA) and State of Good 
Repair (SGR) funds derived from retail sales tax receipts in the western slope of El Dorado 
County for fiscal year 2017/18.  If an economic downturn occurred, the decrease in local 
retail sales tax receipts would result in a significant impact on the ability of the Authority 
to provide public transportation. Fiscal Year 2017/18 saw an increase of approximately ten 
percent (10%) available LTF to El Dorado Transit. 

Research and demographic reporting indicate a projected growth in senior populations.  
This increase of senior residents on the western slope of El Dorado County will create 
demand for additional public transit options.   

Requests for Information 

This discussion is designed to provide general overview to those persons with an interest 
in the Authority’s financial position. Questions or comments may be directed to: 

Julie Petersen, Finance Manager 
El Dorado County Transit Authority 
6565 Commerce Way 
Diamond Springs, CA  95619 
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2018 2017
ASSETS   

CURRENT ASSETS  
Cash and cash equivalents  5,168,757$    5,376,472$   
Accounts receivable  35,388           51,660          
Accrued interest receivable  5,749             2,757            
Due from other governments  2,682,755      1,232,980     
Inventory  216,111         201,861        
Other assets  5,906             5,642            

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  8,114,666      6,871,372     

NONCURRENT ASSETS  
Restricted cash and cash equivalents  1,526,719      1,718,083     
Capital assets:  

Not depreciated  909,043         1,419,514     
Depreciated, net  13,021,763    10,481,685   

Total capital assets  13,930,806    11,901,199   
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS  15,457,525    13,619,282   

TOTAL ASSETS  23,572,191    20,490,654   

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES  
Pensions  1,163,240      1,207,800     
Other postemployment benefits (OPEB) 59,503           -                    

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES  1,222,743      1,207,800     

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED  
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES  24,794,934$  21,698,454$ 

EL DORADO COUNTY TRANSIT AUTHORITY  

BALANCE SHEETS  

June 30, 2018 and 2017

(Continued)

954



2018 2017
LIABILITIES  

CURRENT LIABILITIES  
Accounts payable  3,295,031$    370,333$      
Accrued expenses  100,111         75,783          
Unearned revenues  3,183,821      5,314,497     
Compensated absences, due within one year  215,332         198,728        

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  6,794,295      5,959,341     

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES  
Compensated absences, due in more than one year  215,332         198,729        
Net pension liability  3,075,371      2,614,209     
Net other postemployment benefit liability 181,656         -                    

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES  3,472,359      2,812,938     

TOTAL LIABILITIES  10,266,654    8,772,279     

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES  
Pensions  375,851         283,582        
Other postemployment benefits 51,805           -                    

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES  427,656         283,582        

NET POSITION  
Net investment in capital assets  13,930,806    11,901,199   
Restricted 116,568         
Unrestricted  53,250           741,394        

TOTAL NET POSITION  14,100,624    12,642,593   

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS  
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION  24,794,934$  21,698,454$ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  

EL DORADO COUNTY TRANSIT AUTHORITY  

BALANCE SHEETS (Continued)  

June 30, 2018 and 2017
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2018 2017

OPERATING REVENUES
Fares 1,517,869$    1,583,433$     

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES  1,517,869      1,583,433       

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operating expenses 8,345,010      7,150,794       
Depreciation and amortization 1,452,148      1,351,777       

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES  9,797,158      8,502,571       

OPERATING LOSS  (8,279,289)     (6,919,138)      

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Local transportation fund allocation 4,159,003      4,694,462       
State transit assistance allocation 1,494,506      -                      
Federal transit administration grants 487,448         479,675          
State operating grants 78,928           172,232          
Local operating grants 34,296           31,304            
Other nonoperating revenues 15,940           16,758            
Interest revenue 59,712           37,974            
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets (80,087)          -                      

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)  6,249,746      5,432,405       

LOSS BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS  (2,029,543)     (1,486,733)      

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
PTMISEA 98,767           2,506,629       
State transit assistance fund allocation 1,865,372      888,653          
CalOES 204,902         276,507          
Federal grants 1,457,430      869,969          
Developers 52,106           -                      

TOTAL CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS  3,678,577      4,541,758       

CHANGE IN NET POSITION  1,649,034      3,055,025       

Net position, beginning of year as originally stated 12,642,593    9,587,568       
Restatement for change in accounting principle (191,003)        
Net position, beginning of year, restated 12,451,590    9,587,568       

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR  14,100,624$  12,642,593$   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

EL DORADO COUNTY TRANSIT AUTHORITY  

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND  
CHANGES IN NET POSITION  

For the Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
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2018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   
Cash received from customers    1,534,141$    1,603,003$      
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services    (1,933,977)     (3,787,214)       
Cash paid to employees for services    (2,862,368)     (3,523,973)       

NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES   (3,262,204)     (5,708,184)       

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES   
Operating grants and subsidies   6,253,619      4,612,185        
Miscellaneous revenues    15,940           16,758             

NET CASH PROVIDED BY   
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES   6,269,559      4,628,943        

  
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED      

FINANCING ACTIVITIES     
Grants received for capital acquisitions    98,688           1,712,400        
Acquisition of capital assets    (3,691,775)     (4,555,150)       
Proceeds from disposal of capital assets    129,933         -                       

NET CASH USED BY CAPITAL   
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES   (3,463,154)     (2,842,750)       

 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES   

Interest earnings    56,720           36,836             
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES   56,720           36,836             

DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS   (399,079)        (3,885,155)       

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year  7,094,555      10,979,710      

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR   6,695,476$    7,094,555$      

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS   
TO THE BALANCE SHEET    

Cash and cash equivalents  5,168,757$    5,376,472$      
Restricted cash and cash equivalents     1,526,719      1,718,083        

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS   6,695,476$    7,094,555$      

EL DORADO COUNTY TRANSIT AUTHORITY  

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  

For the Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

(Continued)
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2018 2017
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO   
NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES  

Operating loss (8,279,289)$    (6,919,138)$      
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss    

to net cash used for operating activities:  
Depreciation and amortization   1,452,148      1,351,777        
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:  

Accounts receivable  16,272           19,570             
Inventory   (14,250)          2,927               
Other assets  (264)               15                    
Deferred outflows - pensions 100,202         (753,369)          
Deferred outflows - OPEB (59,503)          -                       
Accounts payable  2,924,698      56,451             
Accrued expenses  24,328           (22,494)            
Compensated absences  33,207           23,703             
Reserve for claims and claim expenses (9,833)              
Net pension liability  461,162         554,991           
Net OPEB liability (64,989)          -                       
Deferred inflows - pensions 92,269           (12,784)            
Deferred inflows - OPEB 51,805           

NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES   (3,262,204)$    (5,708,184)$      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

EL DORADO COUNTY TRANSIT AUTHORITY   

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)   

For the Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
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NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements of the El Dorado County Transit Authority (the Authority) have been prepared in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units.  The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for 
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.  The Authority follows Financial 
Accounting Standards Board Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and 
Accounting Research Bulletins of the Committee of Accounting Procedures issued on or before 
November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.  
The more significant of the Authority’s accounting policies are described below. 

Description of Reporting Entity:  The El Dorado Transit, the predecessor to the Authority, was created in 
the late 1970’s to initially provide transit services for the elderly and handicapped and, subsequently, to 
meet the transportation needs of the general public for the western slope of El Dorado County as part of 
the El Dorado County’s Enterprise Fund.  A Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement was signed between El 
Dorado County and the City of Placerville whereby the Authority would operate as a Joint Powers 
Agency pursuant to Section 6500 of the California Government Code and would be administratively 
separated from the County.  The Authority’s operations were separated from the El Dorado County 
Enterprise Fund on January 1, 1994.  In addition to fare revenues, the Authority receives funds under the 
provisions of the Transportation Development Act from the El Dorado County Transportation 
Commission’s Local Transportation Fund and State Transit Assistance Fund.  The Authority also receives 
revenue from other federal and state grantor agencies. 

The Authority offers the following services:  Commuter service to downtown Sacramento with separate 
service connecting to light rail in Folsom, California; fixed route bus service to the communities of 
Pollock Pines, Camino, Placerville, El Dorado, Diamond Springs, Shingle Springs, Cameron Park, and 
non-emergency medical transportation to Sacramento County.  The Authority also provides shared-ride 
services for elderly and disabled persons including activity program transportation for persons attending 
programs offered by the Mother Lode Rehabilitation Enterprise, Senior Day Care Programs and New 
West Dialysis Clinic; Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) services for eligible persons and Dial-A-
Ride Services for those persons unable to access the regular bus route system.  The Authority offers 
charter bus services, in which a fee is charged to cover the costs of the charter, and contract services for 
Alta California Regional Center. 

All significant activities on which the Authority exercises oversight responsibility have been included in 
the financial statements.  The Authority is governed by a Board of Directors comprised of five members, 
with three members appointed by the Board of Supervisors of El Dorado County and two members 
appointed by the City Council of the City of Placerville. 

Basis of Presentation:  The Authority’s resources are allocated to and accounted for in these financial 
statements as an enterprise fund type of the proprietary fund group.  The enterprise fund is used to 
account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, 
where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing 
goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through 
user charges, or where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, 
expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management 
control, accountability, or other policies. 
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NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Basis of Accounting:  The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by 
its measurement focus.  The enterprise fund type is accounted for on a flow of economic resources 
measurement focus.  With this measurement focus, all assets, deferred outflows of resources, all liabilities 
and deferred inflows of resources associated with the operation of the Authority are included on the 
balance sheet.  Net position is segregated into the net investment in capital assets, amounts restricted and 
amounts unrestricted.  Enterprise fund type operating statements present increases (i.e., revenues) and 
decreases (i.e., expenses) in net position. 

The Authority uses the accrual basis of accounting.  Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred.  Non-exchange 
revenues are recognized when all eligibility requirements have been met.  Cost reimbursement grant 
revenues are recognized when program expenditures are incurred in accordance with program guidelines.  
When such funds are received before eligibility requirements are met they are recorded as unearned 
revenues until earned. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues of 
the Authority are charges to passengers for public transit services.  Operating expenses for the Authority 
include the cost of transit services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets.  All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Authority’s policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents:  For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Authority considers all 
highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash 
equivalents, including bank deposits and the investment in the State of California Local Agency 
Investment Fund (LAIF). 

Restricted Cash:  The Authority has bank deposits that are restricted for the following at June 30, 2018 
and 2017: 

2018 2017
Public Transportation Modernization Improvement and 
Service Enhancement Account (PTMISEA) projects 1,203,117$    1,295,025$    

California Transit Security Grant Program (CTSGP) 
projects 226,204         231,810         

Low Carbon Transit Operation Program (LCTOP) 
projects 79,606           172,962         

Claims expenses 17,792           18,286           
1,526,719$    1,718,083$     
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NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Accounts Receivable and Due from Other Governments:  Accounts receivable consists mainly of amounts 
due from passengers and other agencies for fares.  Amounts due from other governments consist mostly 
of amounts due from operating and capital grants.  Management believes its accounts receivable and 
amounts due from other governments to be fully collectible and, accordingly, no allowance for doubtful 
accounts is required. 

Inventory:  Inventories are valued at cost, which is determined on an average cost basis, and consist 
primarily of transit vehicle parts and supplies held for consumption.  The cost is recorded as an expense 
when the items are consumed in operations. 

Capital Assets:  Capital assets are stated at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical 
cost is not available.  Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial cost of $1,000 or more and an 
estimated useful life in excess of one year.  Donated capital assets are recorded at the acquisition value, 
which is the price that would be paid to acquire an asset with equivalent service potential in an orderly 
market transaction at the acquisition date.  Provision is made for depreciation by the straight-line method 
over the estimated useful lives of these assets which range from three to forty years.  The costs of normal 
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not 
capitalized.  Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related 
capital assets. 

Unearned Revenues:  Unearned revenues arise when resources are received by the Authority before it has 
legal claim to them, such as when cost reimbursement grant and other intergovernmental revenues are 
received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenses.  Information on unearned revenues is reported in 
Note E. 

Compensated Absences:  The Authority’s policy allows employees to accumulate earned but unused 
vacation, sick leave, and compensatory time off that will be paid to employees upon separation from the 
Authority’s service, subject to a vesting policy.  The cost of vacation, sick leave and compensatory time 
off is recorded in the period accrued. 

Reserve for Claims and Claim Expenses:  The Authority establishes claims liabilities based on estimates 
of the ultimate cost of claims (including future claim adjustment expenses) that have been reported but 
not settled, and of claims that have been incurred but not reported.  The length of time for which such 
costs must be estimated varies depending on the coverage involved.  Because actual claims costs depend 
on complex factors such as inflation, changes in doctrines of legal liability, and damage awards, the 
process used in computing claims liabilities does not necessarily result in an exact amount.  Claims 
liabilities are recomputed periodically using a variety of actuarial and statistical techniques to produce 
current estimates that reflect recent settlements, claim frequency, and other economic and social factors.  
A provision for inflation in the calculation of estimated future claims costs is implicit in the calculation 
because reliance is placed both on actual historical data that reflect past inflation and on other factors that 
are considered to be appropriate modifiers of past experience.  Adjustments to claims liabilities are 
charged or credited to expense in the periods in which they are made. 

Net Position:  Net position are categorized as the net investment in capital assets, restricted and 
unrestricted.   

Net Investment in Capital Assets – This category groups all capital assets into one component of net 
position.  Accumulated depreciation reduces the balance in this category. 
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NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Restricted Net Position – This category presents external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, 
contributors, laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  The Authority’s restricted net position at June 30, 
2018 represent insurance proceeds that are required by federal regulation to be used for another bus 
purchase.  The Authority had no restricted net position at June 30, 2017.  All of the Authority’s 
restricted cash is offset by unearned revenue. 

Unrestricted Net Position – This category represents net position of the Authority not restricted for 
any project or other purpose. 

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources:  In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position 
reports separate sections for deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources.  Deferred outflows of 
resources represent a consumption of net position by the government that is applicable to a future 
reporting period.  Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that is applicable 
to a future reporting period.  These amounts will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) 
or an inflow of resources (revenue) until the earning process is complete.  Deferred outflows and inflows 
of resources represent amounts deferred related to the Authority pension and OPEB plan as described in 
Notes G and H, and for deferred amounts related to bond refundings. 

Pensions:  For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources 
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Authority’s 
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plans (Plans) and additions to/deductions 
from the Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by 
CalPERS.  For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are 
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair 
value. 

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB):  For purposes of measuring the net OPEB 
liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB 
expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the OPEB plan and additions to/deductions from 
the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis.  For this purpose, benefit 
payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are 
reported at fair value. 

Use of Estimates:  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts  of  assets  and  liabilities  and  disclosure  of  contingent  assets  and liabilities at  the  date of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

New Pronouncements:  In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities.  This 
Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments.  The 
focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary 
activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists.  Separate criteria are included 
to identify fiduciary component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary 
activities.  This Statement describes four fiduciary funds that should be reported, if applicable: (1) 
pension (and other employee benefit) trust funds, (2) investment trust funds, (3) private-purpose trust 
funds, and (4) custodial funds.  Custodial funds generally should report fiduciary activities that are not  
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NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

held in a trust or equivalent arrangement that meets specific criteria.  This Statement also provides for  
recognition of a liability to the beneficiaries in a fiduciary fund when an event has occurred that compels 
the government to disburse fiduciary resources.  Events that compel a government to disburse fiduciary 
resources occur when a demand for the resources has been made or when no further action, approval, or 
condition is required to be taken or met by the beneficiary to release the assets.  The requirements of this 
Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. 

In March 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017.  The objective of this Statement is to 
address practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB 
Statements. This Statement addresses a variety of topics including issues related to blending component 
units, goodwill, fair value measurement and application, and postemployment benefits (pensions and 
other postemployment benefits (OPEB)).  Topics that may be applicable include criteria for an enterprise 
fund to blend a component unit, measuring certain money market investments at amortized cost, timing of 
pension and OPEB liabilities and expenditures under the current financial resources measurement focus, 
presenting payroll related measures in RSI for OPEB plans, classifying employer paid member 
contributions for OPEB plans, accounting and financial reporting for multiple-employer defined benefit 
OPEB Plans.  The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 
15, 2017. 

The Authority is currently analyzing the impact of these new Statements on the financial statements. 

NOTE B – CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and cash equivalents at June 30, are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows: 

2018 2017

Cash and cash equivalents 5,168,757$   5,376,472$   
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,526,719     1,718,083     

6,695,476$   7,094,555$   
 

The Authority’s cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 consisted of the following: 

2018 2017

Cash on hand 200$             200$             
Deposits in financial institutions 5,483,752     5,896,980     
Investment in the Local Agency Investment Fund 1,211,524     1,197,375     

6,695,476$   7,094,555$   
 

Investment Policy:  California statutes, and the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement establishing the 
Authority discussed in Note A, authorize governmental agencies to invest surplus funds in a variety of 
credit instruments as provided in the California Government Code, Section 53600, Chapter 4 – Financial 
Affairs.  The Authority’s investment policy further restricts investments to bank deposits, including 
certificates of deposit, and the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). 
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NOTE B – CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 

Interest Rate Risk:  Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect 
the fair value of an investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the 
sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates.  As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the 
weighted average maturity of the investment in LAIF was approximately 193 and 194 days. 

Credit Risk:  Generally credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation 
to the holder of the investment.  This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized 
statistical rating organization.  LAIF does not have a rating provided by a nationally recognized statistical 
rating organization. 

Custodial Credit Risk:  Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a 
depository financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to 
recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.  The custodial credit risk for 
investments is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the counter party (e.g. broker-dealer) to a 
transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities 
that are in the possession of another party.  The California Government Code requires that a financial 
institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an 
undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the 
governmental unit).  The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 
110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies.  California law also allows financial 
institutions to secure public agency deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 
150% of the secured public deposits.  Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government’s indirect 
deposits or investment in securities through the use of governmental investment pools. 

At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the carrying amounts of the Authority’s deposits were $5,483,751 and 
$5,896,980, respectively, and the balances in financial institutions were $5,506,991 and $5,930,305, 
respectively.  Of the balance in financial institutions, $250,000 was covered by federal depository 
insurance and $5,256,991 and $5,680,305 at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, was covered by the 
pledging financial institution with assets held in a common pool for the Authority and other governmental 
agencies, but not in the name of the Authority. 

Investment in LAIF:  LAIF is stated at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.  The LAIF is a 
special fund of the California State Treasury’s Pooled Money Investment Account (PMIA) through which 
local governments may pool investments.  The total fair value amount invested by all public agencies in 
PMIA was $150,911,154 managed by the State Treasurer.  Of that amount, 2.67% is invested in 
structured notes and asset-backed securities.  The Local Investment Advisory Board (Board) has oversight 
responsibility for LAIF.  The Board consists of five members as designated by State Statute.  The 
amortized cost of the Authority’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial 
statements at amounts based upon the Authority’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for 
the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio).  The balance available for 
withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized 
cost basis. 
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NOTE C – CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital assets consisted of the following at June 30: 

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2017 Additions Retirements Transfers June 30, 2018

Capital assets, not being 
depreciated:

Land 602,510$      602,510$      
Construction in progress 817,004        110,325$      (620,796)$   306,533        

Total capital assets,
not being depreciated 1,419,514     110,325                           (620,796)     909,043        

Capital assets, being
depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 4,736,454     307,485        122,666      5,166,605     
Transit vehicles 15,100,331   2,822,099     (549,637)$   17,372,793   
Equipment 2,247,787     451,866        (414,198)     498,130      2,783,585     

Total capital assets,
being depreciated 22,084,572   3,581,450     (963,835)     620,796      25,322,983   

Less accumulated depreciation:
Building and improvements (1,543,127)   (240,917)       (1,784,044)    
Transit vehicles (8,761,454)   (913,124)       425,681      (9,248,897)    
Equipment (1,298,306)   (298,107)       328,134      (1,268,279)    

Total accumulated depreciation (11,602,887) (1,452,148)    753,815                         (12,301,220)  
Total capital assets

being depreciated, net 10,481,685   2,129,302     (210,020)     620,796      13,021,763   

Capital assets, net 11,901,199$ 2,239,627$   (210,020)$   -$                13,930,806$  
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NOTE C – CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2016 Additions Retirements Transfers June 30, 2017

Capital assets, not being 
depreciated:

Land 602,510$      602,510$      
Construction in progress 348,861        474,725$     (6,582)$     817,004        

Total capital assets, 
not being depreciated 951,371        474,725                         (6,582)       1,419,514     

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 4,727,426     9,028           4,736,454
Transit vehicles 11,137,261   3,963,070    15,100,331
Equipment 2,155,169     108,327       (22,291)$   6,582         2,247,787

Total capital assets, 
being depreciated 18,019,856   4,080,425    (22,291)     6,582         22,084,572   

Less accumulated depreciation:
Building and improvements (1,306,732)    (236,395)      (1,543,127)    
Transit vehicles (7,932,367)    (829,087)      (8,761,454)    
Equipment (1,034,302)    (286,295)      22,291       (1,298,306)    

Total accumulated depreciation (10,273,401)  (1,351,777)   22,291       -                 (11,602,887)  
Total capital assets 

being depreciated, net 7,746,455     2,728,648    -                 6,582         10,481,685   

Capital assets, net 8,697,826$   3,203,373$  -$               -$               11,901,199$ 
 

NOTE D – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Long-term liability activity consisted of the following for the year ended June 30: 

Restated
Balance at Balance at Due Within

June 30, 2017 Additions Retirements June 30, 2018 One Year

Compensated absences 397,457$      231,935$    (198,728)$   430,664$      215,332$   
Net pension liability 2,614,209     461,162      3,075,371     
Net OPEB liability 246,645        (64,989)       181,656        

3,258,311$   693,097$    (263,717)$   3,687,691$   215,332$   
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NOTE D – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 

Balance at Balance at Due Within
June 30, 2016 Additions Retirements June 30, 2017 One Year

Compensated absences 373,754$      210,579$    (186,876)$    397,457$      198,728$   
Reserve for claims 

and claims expenses 9,833 (9,833) -                
Net pension liability 2,059,218 554,991 2,614,209

2,442,805$   765,570$    (196,709)$   3,011,666$   198,728$   
 

NOTE E – UNEARNED REVENUES  

A schedule of changes in unearned revenue for the year ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 is as follows: 

STA State of
Operating/ Good

Capital Repair PTMISEA CalOES LCTOP Other Total

Balance, June 30, 2017 3,942,311$ 1,239,380$ 80,700$   -$             52,106$   5,314,497$ 
Allocations 886,460      236,757$ 224,738   78,928     1,426,883   
Interest and other 11,332        1,721       698          144          13,895        
Expenditures (3,122,855)  (110,099)     (206,624)  (79,626)    (52,250)    (3,571,454)  

Balance, June 30, 2018 1,705,916$ 236,757$ 1,140,613$ 100,535$ -$             -$             3,183,821$  

STA
LTF Operating/

Operating Capital PTMISEA CalOES LCTOP Other Total

Balance, June 30, 2016 913,262$    4,222,437$ 3,746,009$ 232,353$ 172,237$ 67,752$  9,354,050$  
Allocations 3,781,200   608,527      12,088        124,854   73,101    4,599,770  
Interest and other 1,306       727          222         2,255         
Expenditures (4,694,462)  (888,653)     (2,518,717)  (277,813)  (172,964)  (88,969)   (8,641,578) 

Balance, June 30, 2017 -$             3,942,311$  1,239,380$  80,700$    -$          52,106$    5,314,497$   
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NOTE E – UNEARNED REVENUES (Continued) 

Local Transportation Fund:  The Local Transportation Fund (LTF) provides support to the transit system 
to fund its operation.  The Transportation Development Act (TDA) requires that funds in excess of actual 
operating costs as defined by section 6634 of the California Code of Regulations must be either returned 
to their source or retained and used in the following fiscal year.  The maximum amount allowed is based 
on operating costs after certain adjustments.  Allocations in excess of this amount are recorded as 
unearned revenue.  All LTF allocations for fiscal year 2018 were earned.  At June 30, 2017, the Authority 
had unearned LTF allocations for operating purposes determined as follows: 

2017
Unearned LTF allocations at beginning of year 913,262$     

LTF allocation
Total amount allocated 3,781,200    

LTF allocations available for operating costs 4,694,462    

Maximum amount allowed:
Operating expenses 8,502,571    
Less: Depreciation (1,351,777)   

Actual operating cost of existing service 7,150,794    
Adjustments:

Fares (1,583,433)   
Federal, state and local operating grants (683,211)      
Other income (135)             
Interest revenue available for operating costs (23,853)        

Maximum amount allowed 4,860,162    

Unearned LTF allocations at end of year -$                 
 

State Transit Assistance:  State Transit Assistance (STA) allocations were used to fund capital asset 
purchases.  Allocations in excess of qualifying expenses are recorded as unearned revenue.  The 
maximum STA revenues available for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 was determined as 
follows: 

2018 2017

Unearned STA allocations at beginning of year 3,942,311$   4,222,437$   
STA allocation 886,460       608,527       
STA allocations available 4,828,771    4,830,964    

Maximum amount allowed:
Capital assets purchased 3,122,855    888,653       
Maximum amount allowed 3,122,855    888,653       

Unearned STA allocations at end of year 1,705,916$   3,942,311$   
 

State of Good Repair:  State of Good Repair allocations are to be used for preventative maintenance for 
the fleet.  None of the $236,757 allocation for fiscal year 2018 was earned as of June 30, 2018. 
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NOTE E – UNEARNED REVENUES (Continued) 

PTMISEA:  In November 2006, California Voters passed a bond measure enacting the Highway Safety, 
Traffic Reduction, Air Quality, and Port Security Bond Act of 2006.  Of the $19.925 billion of state 
general obligation bonds authorized, $4 billion was set aside by the State as instructed by statute as the 
Public Transportation Modernization Improvement and Service Enhancement Account (PTMISEA).  
These funds are available to the California Department of Transportation for intercity rail projects and to 
transit operators in California for rehabilitation, safety or modernization improvements, capital service 
enhancements or expansions, new capital projects, bus rapid transit improvements or for rolling stock 
procurement, rehabilitation or replacement. 

During the year ended June 30, 2015, the Authority applied for and received $1,686,183, from the State 
PTMISEA account for various purchases.  As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, funds expended were verified in 
the course of the audit as follows: 

2018 2017

Beginning balance 1,239,380$  3,746,009$  
Interest earnings 11,332        12,088        
Expenses incurred:

Connect Card and vehicle purchases (5,171)         (2,343,828)  
Western Placerville interchange (104,928)     (174,889)     

Unexpended proceeds 1,140,613$  1,239,380$ 
 

California Office of Emergency Services (CalOES):  As approved by the voters in the November 2006 
general elections, Proposition 1B enacts the Highway Safety, Traffic Reduction, Air Quality, and Port 
Security Bond Act of 2006 to authorize $19.925 billion of state general obligation bonds for specified 
purposes, including grants for transit system safety, security and disaster response projects.  CalOES has 
been charged with administering the following Prop 1B California Transit Security Grant Program 
(CTSGP). 

Qualifying expenses must be encumbered within three years from the date of the allocation and expended 
within three years from the date of the encumbrance.  As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, funds received and 
expended were as follows: 

2018 2017

Balance at beginning of  year 80,700$      232,353$    
CalOES funds received 224,738      124,854      
Interest earnings 1,721          1,306          
Expenses incurred:

Collision avoidance system (125,802)     
Park and ride improvements (80,822)       
Bus lot improvements (83,050)       
Bus stop surveillance (194,763)     

Unexpended proceeds 100,535$    80,700$      
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NOTE E – UNEARNED REVENUES (Continued) 

LCTOP:  The Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) was established by the California 
Legislature in 2014 by Senate Bill 862.  The LCTOP provides funds to transit agencies to reduce 
greenhouse gas emission and improve mobility through operating and capital grants.  Projects approved 
for LCTOP will support bus or rail services, expand intermodal transit facilities, and may include 
equipment acquisition, fueling, maintenance and other costs to operate those services or facilities, with 
each project reducing greenhouse gas emissions. 

As of June 30, LCTOP funds expended were verified in the course of the audit as follows: 

2018 2017

LCTOP received 78,928$       172,237$     
Interest earnings 698             727             
Expenses incurred:

Cameron Park Fixed Route Service expansion (79,626)      (172,964)    

Unexpended proceeds -$             -$             
 

NOTE F – FARE REVENUE RATIO 

The Authority is required to maintain a fare revenue to operating expense ratio in accordance with the 
Transportation Development Act.  The fare revenue to operating expenses ratio for the Authority is 
calculated as follows for the year ended June 30: 

2018 2017

Fare revenues 1,517,869$  1,583,433$  
Less: Charter service (5) (4,626)
Fare revenues, excluding charter service 1,517,864 1,578,807

Operating expenses 9,797,158    8,502,571    
Less allowable exclusions:

Depreciation and amortization (1,452,148)   (1,351,777)   
Charter service expenses (5)                 (4,626)          

Net operating expenses 8,345,005$   7,146,168$   

Fare revenue ratio 18.19% 22.09%
 

The Authority was in compliance with the required 12.22% fare revenue for the years ended June 30, 
2018 and 2017. 
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NOTE G – PENSION PLANS 

Plan Descriptions:  All qualified employees are eligible to participate in the Authority’s cost-sharing 
multiple employer defined benefit pension plans administered by the California Public Employees’ 
Retirement System (CalPERS).  The Authority participates in the Miscellaneous Plan with the CalPERS 
cost-sharing plan. 

Benefit provisions under the Plans are established by State statute and Board resolution. CalPERS issues 
publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, 
assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website at 
www.calpers.ca.gov. 

Benefits Provided:  CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living 
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries.  
Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members with 
five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 (52 for PEPRA Miscellaneous Plan) with 
statutorily reduced benefits.  All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 5 years of 
service.  The death benefit is the following: the 1959 Survivor Benefit, level 3 or the Optional Settlement 
2W Death Benefit.  The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public 
Employees’ Retirement Law. 

The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2018 and 2017, are summarized as follows: 

PEPRA
Miscellaneous Miscellaneous

Plan Plan
(Prior to (On or after

Hire date January 1, 2013) January 1, 2013)

Benefit formula (at full retirement) 2.0% @ 55 2.0% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 - 63 52 - 67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 1.426% to 2.418% 1.0% to 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 2017/18 7.000% 6.500%
Required employer contribution rates 2017/18 9.599% 6.908%
Required employee contribution rates 2016/17 7.000% 6.500%
Required employer contribution rates 2016/17 9.558% 6.930%  

In addition to the contribution rate above, the Authority was also required to make a payment of $166,590 
and $143,408 towards its unfunded actuarial liability during the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, 
respectively. 

The Miscellaneous Plan is closed to new members that are not already CalPERS eligible participants. 

Contributions:  Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the 
employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and 
shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for the  
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NOTE G – PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Plans are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined 
rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the 
year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The Authority is required to 
contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. 

The contributions for the Miscellaneous Plan were $438,662 and $396,093 for the years ended June 30, 
2018 and 2017, respectively. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions:  
As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Authority reported a net pension liability for its proportionate share of 
the net pension liability of the Plan of $3,075,371 and $2,614,209, respectively. 

The Authority’s net pension liability is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension liability. 
The net pension liability as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 is measured as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the 
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation 
as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 rolled forward to June 30, 2015 and 2014 using standard update procedures. 
The Authority’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Authority’s long-
term share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected contributions of all participating 
employers, actuarially determined. The Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability as of 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 was as follows: 

Miscellaneous
Plan

Proportion - June 30, 2018 0.07801%
Proportion - June 30, 2017 0.07525%
Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.00276%  

For the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Authority recognized a pension expense of $1,031,834 
and $178,279.  At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to the Plan from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources Resources Resources

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date 438,662$    396,093$    
Differences between actual and expected experience 4,347          (62,285)$    12,937        (2,964)$      
Differences betweeen the employer's contribution and

the employer's proportionate share of contributions 57,405        10,099        (48,501)      
Change of assumptions 539,414      (41,131)      (122,403)    
Change in employer's proportion 1,419          (272,435)    151,605      (109,714)    
Net differences between projected and actual earnings

on plan investments 121,993      637,066      

Total 1,163,240$ (375,851)$  1,207,800$ (283,582)$  

2018 2017
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NOTE G – PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

The $438,662 and $396,093  reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the 
year ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Other amounts reported as net deferred outflows and 
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows: 

Fiscal Year Ended
June 30

2019 45,775$       
2020 229,619       
2021 145,763       
2022 (72,430)        

348,727$     
 

Actuarial Assumptions:  The total pension liabilities in the actuarial valuations for the Plan were 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions: 

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017

Valuation Date June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015
Measurement Date June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal Cost Method Entry Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.15% 7.65%
Inflation 2.75% 2.75%
Payroll Growth 3.0% 3.0%
Projected Salary Increase 3.3% - 14.2% (1) 3.3% - 14.2% (1)
Investment Rate of Return 7.50% 7.50%
Mortality Derived using CalPERS 

Membership Data for all Funds
Derived using CalPERS 

Membership Data for all Funds

(1) Depending on entry age and service
(2) Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation  

The underlying mortality assumptions was developed based on CalPERS-specific data.  The table 
includes 20 years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB.  Other significant 
actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 valuations were based on the results of the actuarial 
experience study for the period 1997 to 2011. Further details of the April 2014 CalPERS Experience 
Study can found on the CalPERS website. 

Discount Rate:  The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15% and 7.65% for the 
years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively for each Plan. To determine whether the municipal 
bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for each plan, CalPERS stress tested plans 
that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed 
discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested plans run out of assets. Therefore, the current  
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NOTE G – PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

discount rate is adequate and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not necessary. The long 
term expected discount rate will be applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF). 
The stress test results are presented in a detailed report that can be obtained from the CalPERS website. 

In fiscal year 2016-2017, the financial reporting discount rate for the Plan was lowered from 7.65 percent 
to 7.15 percent.  Deferred outflows of resources for changes of assumptions represent the unamortized 
portion of this assumption change. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and 
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical 
returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the short-term 
(first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected 
nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each 
fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived 
at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-
term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated 
above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent. 

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class for the Plans as of the 
measurement dates of June 30. The rate of return was calculated using the capital market assumptions 
applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative 
expenses. 

Real Real Real Real
New Return Return New Return Return

Strategic Years Years Strategic Years Years
Asset Class Allocation 1 - 10(a) 11+(b) Allocation 1 - 10(a) 11+(b)

Global Equity 47.0% 4.90% 5.38% 51.0% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 19.0% 0.80% 2.27% 20.0% 0.99% 2.43%
Inflation Sensitive 6.0% 0.60% 1.39% 6.0% 0.45% 3.36%
Private Equity 12.0% 6.60% 6.63% 10.0% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Estate 11.0% 2.80% 5.21% 10.0% 4.50% 5.13%
Infrastructure and Forestland 3.0% 3.90% 5.36% 2.0% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 2.0% (0.40)% (0.90)% 1.0% (0.55)% (1.05)%

Total 100.0% 100.0%

(a)  An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period.
(b)  An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period.

2018 2017
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NOTE G – PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate:  The 
following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan, calculated 
using the discount rate for the Plan, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-
percentage point higher than the current rate: 

2018 2017

1% Decrease 6.15% 6.65%
Net Pension Liability 4,853,434$    4,054,583$    

Current Discount Rate 7.15% 7.65%
Net Pension Liability 3,075,371$    2,614,209$    

1% Increase 8.15% 8.65%
Net Pension Liability 1,602,748$    1,423,810$     

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position:  Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net 
position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports. 

Payable to the Pension Plan:  At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Authority reported payables for the 
outstanding amount of contributions to the plan of $28,435 and $6,605, respectively. 

NOTE H – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 

The Authority implemented GASB Statement No. 75 as of July 1, 2017.  As a result, GASB Statement 
No. 45 was effective for 2017 and GASB Statement No. 75 was effective for 2018.  The following 
disclosures are required under GASB Statement No. 45. 

Plan Description:  The Authority provides healthcare benefits to eligible retirees and their dependents 
through the CalPERS Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act program (PEMHCA).  All of the 
Authority’s regular employees not represented by a bargaining unit may become eligible for those 
benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the Authority.  Benefit provisions are 
established and may be amended by the Authority’s Board of Directors.  Copies of the CalPERS annual 
financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office at 400 P Street, Sacramento, CA 
95814. 

The Authority provides a retiree medical contribution for employees who retire directly from the 
Authority under CalPERS.  The Authority’s contribution is capped at the CalPERS’ Minimum Employer 
Contribution, which was $64 per month for calendar year 2018 and 2017, respectively.  The benefit 
continues to surviving spouses and dependents.   

Funding Policy:  The contribution requirements of the Authority’s participants and the Authority are 
established by and may be amended by the Authority’s Board of Directors.  Retired plan members and 
their beneficiaries will pay the annual premium cost not paid by the employer. 
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NOTE H – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation:  The Authority’s annual other postemployment benefit 
cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution (ARC) of the employer.  The ARC 
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each 
year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30 
years.  

The following table shows the components of the Authority’s annual OPEB cost for the year ended 
June 30, 2017, the amount actually contributed to the Plan, and changes in the Authority’s Net OPEB 
obligation:  

Annual required contribution:
  Normal Cost 31,222$    
  Amortization of UAAL 16,403      
  Interest 3,467        
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 51,092      
Contributions made (51,092)

Decrease in net OPEB obligation                  
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year

Net OPEB obligation, end of year -$          
 

The Authority’s OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan and the net 
OPEB obligation for 2017 and the two preceding years were as follows:  

Fiscal Percentage of Net
Year Annual Annual OPEB OPEB 

Ended OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Obligation

6/30/2015 19,453$    100.00% -                  
6/30/2016 49,525        100.00% -                  
6/30/2017 51,092        100.00% -                   

Funded Status and Funding Progress:  As of the most recent actuarial valuation dated July 1, 2015, the 
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $434,113 and  $249,963 of this amount was unfunded.  The 
covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) for the year ended June 30, 
2017 was $1,275,829 and the ratio of the UAAL (unfunded actuarial accrued liability) to the covered 
payroll was 19.59%.   

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of expected benefit payments and 
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.  Examples include 
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend.  Amounts determined 
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject 
to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made 
about the future.  The schedule of funding progress below presents multi-year trend information about 
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial 
accrued liabilities for benefits. 
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NOTE H – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions:  Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on 
the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan participants) and include the 
types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit 
costs between the employer and plan participants to that point.  The actuarial methods and assumptions 
used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued 
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 

For the July 1, 2015 actuarial valuation, the entry age normal cost method with normal cost determined 
using a level percentage of pay basis was used as the funding method.  The actuarial assumptions 
included a 7.28% investment rate of return, a 3.25% salary increase, a 3% wage inflation rate and a 
general inflation rate of 2.75%.  Premiums were assumed to increase from a range of 7.50% in 2014 to 
4.50% in 2023 and later.  The initial UAAL was amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll over 
a fixed 30-year period as of the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010.  The remaining amortization period is 
23 years as of June 30, 2017. 

The following disclosures for 2018 are required under GASB Statement No. 75. 

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms:  At June 30, 2018, the following employees were covered by the 
benefit terms: 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 2
Active employees 27

Total 29
 

Contributions:  The Board establishes rates based on an actuarially determined rate.  For the year ended 
June 30, 2018, the Authority's average contribution rate was 3.06 percent of covered-employee payroll.  
Employees are not required to contribute to the Plan.  During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the 
Authority’s cash contributions to the trust were $57,857 and the estimated implied subsidy was $1,646 
resulting in total payments of $59,503.  The Authority makes contributions to the CERBT, which is 
administered by CalPERS. 

Net OPEB Liability:  The Authority's net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total 
OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
July 1, 2017. 
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NOTE H – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions:  The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined 
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless 
otherwise specified: 

Valuation date June 30, 2017
Measurement date June 30, 2017
Actuarial cost method Entry-age normal cost method, level percent of pay
Actuarial assumptions:

Discount rate 7.28%
Salary increases 3.25% per year
Wage inflation 3.00%
General inflation rate 2.75%
Mortality rate Bickmore Scale 2017
Healthcare trend rate 8% in 2018 to 5% in 2025 and later  

Demographic actuarial assumptions are based on the 2014 experience study of the California Public 
Employees Retirement System using data from 1997 to 2011, except for a different basis used to project 
future mortality improvements.  Mortality rates used were those published by CalPERS, adjusted to back 
out 20 years of Scale BB to central year 2008, then projected as described below. 

The assumed gross return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block method in 
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB plan 
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.  These ranges are combined to 
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the 
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.  The target allocation and best 
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table: 

Percentage Assumed Gross 
Asset Class of Portfolio Return

Global Equity 57.0% 5.82%
Fixed Income 27.0% 2.37%
Tresaury Inflation Protected Securities 5.0% 1.44%
Real Estate Investment Trusts 8.0% 4.25%
All Commodities 3.0% 2.34%

100.0% 4.50%  

Discount Rate:  The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 7.28%.  The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that Authority contributions will be made at rates 
equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates.  Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan's 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected OPEB payments for current 
active and inactive employees.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments 
was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability. 

78



EL DORADO COUNTY TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

June 30, 2018 and 2017 

34 

NOTE H – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 

Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability

Balance at June 30, 2017 434,113$      187,468$      246,645$      
Changes in the year:

Service cost 31,222          31,222          
Interest 33,711          33,711          
Differences between expected and

actual experience (14,513)         (14,513)         
Changes in assumptions (40,263)         (40,263)         
Changes in benefit terms                       
Contributions - employer 55,642          (55,642)         
Net investment income 19,606          (19,606)         
Administrative expenses (102)              102               
Benefit payments (4,550)           (4,550)           

Net changes 5,607            70,596          (64,989)         

Balance at June 30, 2018 439,720$      258,064$      181,656$      

Increase (Decrease)

 

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate and Healthcare Cost Trend Rates:  
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Authority, as well as what the Authority's net OPEB 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 
percentage point higher than the current discount rate: 

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

6.28% 7.28% 8.28%

Net OPEB liability 239,876$     181,656$     133,080$      

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates:  The following 
presents the net OPEB liability of the Authority, as well as what the Authority's net OPEB liability 
would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1 percentage point lower or 1 
percentage point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 

Current Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease Trend Rates 1% Increase

Net OPEB liability 118,208$     181,656$     281,513$      

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position:  Detailed information about the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is 
available in the separately issued CERBT financial report at www.calpers.ca.gov. 
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NOTE H – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPEB:  For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Authority recognized OPEB expense of $42,458.  At June 
30, 2018, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to OPEB from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows

of Resources of Resources

OPEB contributions subsequent to measurement date 59,503$        
Change in assumptions (35,667)$      
Difference between expected and actual experience (12,856)        
Net differences between projected and actual earnings

on plan investments (3,282)          

Total 59,503$        (51,805)$      
 

The amount reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions after the measurement date 
will be recognized as a reduction of the OPEB liability in the following fiscal year.  Other amounts 
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be 
recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Year Ended
June 30

2019 (7,073)$       
2020 (7,073)         
2021 (7,073)         
2022 (7,075)         
2023 (6,253)         

Thereafter (17,258)       
(51,805)$      

NOTE I – INSURANCE COVERAGE 

The Authority participates in the California Transit Insurance Pool (CalTIP), a joint powers public entity 
risk pool of governmental transit operators within California, for general, automobile, public officials 
errors and omissions liability and vehicle physical damage (collision and comprehensive).  The Authority 
is provided with an excess coverage fund for these items through commercial insurance.  Loss 
contingency reserves established by CalTIP are funded by contributions from member agencies.  The 
Authority pays an annual premium to CalTIP that includes its pro-rata share of excess insurance  
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NOTE I – INSURANCE COVERAGE (Continued) 

premiums, charges for the pooled risk, claims adjusting and legal costs, and administrative and other costs 
to operate the CalTIP.  The Authority’s deductibles and maximum coverage under CalTIP are as follows: 

Pool Commercial
Coverage Coverage Deductible

General, Auto and Public Officials Errors
& Omissions Liability 10,000,000$  25,000,000$  none

Vehicle Physical Damage 100,000         20,100,000    $500 to $5,000  

CalTIP is governed by a Board of Directors and member agencies are entitled to representation on the 
board.  Upon termination of the JPA agreements, all property of CalTIP would be returned the respective 
parties that transferred the property to CalTIP and any surplus of funds and assets would be returned to 
the parties in proportion to actual balances of each entity.  Complete financial information for CalTIP is 
available at 1750 Creekside Oaks Drive, Suite 200, Sacramento, CA 95833. 

The Authority has been covered for excess worker’s compensation and employer’s liability through a 
pooled commercial insurance policy held by the Special District Risk Management Authority pool since 
July 1, 2002.  The Authority pays a pro-rata share of the annual premiums.  The Authority continues to 
carry commercial insurance for property loss.  Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded 
commercial insurance coverage in the past three fiscal years. 

NOTE J – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Certain members of the Authority’s Board of Directors are also members of the Board of Supervisors of 
the County of El Dorado, the City Council of the City of Placerville and El Dorado County 
Transportation Commission.  During the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Authority had the 
following related party transactions: 

2018 2017
City of Placerville:

Bus shelter maintenance expense 1,210$       1,320$       
Background checks 240            580            

1,450$       1,900$       

County of El Dorado:
Health insurance 25,257$     44,596$     

25,257$     44,596$     

Accounts payable due to County of El Dorado 5,242$       2,168$       

Accounts payable due to City of Placerville 13,314$     8,279$       

Accounts payable due to El Dorado County
Transportation Commission 4,500$       -$               
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NOTE K – CONCENTRATIONS 

The Authority receives a substantial amount of its support from a statewide retail sales tax from the Local 
Transportation Fund created by the Transportation Development Act.  A significant reduction in the level 
of this support, if this were to occur, may have a significant effect on the Authority’s activities. 

NOTE L – CONTINGENCIES 

The Authority receives funding for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the granting 
agencies of the funding source.  Such audits could result in a request for reimbursement for expenditures 
disallowed under the terms and conditions of the contracts.  Management is of the opinion that no 
material liabilities will result from such audits. 

NOTE M – CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES 

During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Authority adopted GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.  This Statement required the 
Authority to recognize in its financial statements the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources for the Authority’s OPEB plan.  Due to implementation of this 
Statement, total liabilities increased by $246,645, deferred outflows of resources increased $55,642 and 
net position decreased $191,003 as of July 1, 2017. 

NOTE N – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

In July 2018, the Authority executed an Installment Sale Agreement to finance a portion of the five buses 
purchased by the Authority in June 2018.  The amount financed is $1,200,000 to be repaid over a five 
year term ending in July 2023.  The Agreement requires payments starting October 26, 2018 of 
$65,415.53 on a quarterly basis.  The interest rate under this agreement is 3.35%. 
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June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016

Proportion of the net pension liability 0.07801% 0.07525% 0.07506%

Proportionate share of the net pension liability 3,075,371$    2,614,209$    2,059,218$    

Covered payroll - measurement period 2,918,283$    2,715,385$    2,337,069$    

Proportionate share of the net pension liability as a 
percentage of covered payroll 105.38% 96.27% 88.11%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 78.02% 75.57% 78.40%

Notes to Schedule:

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016

Contractually required contribution (actuarially determined) 438,662$       396,093$       362,047$       
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contributions (438,662)        (396,093)        (362,047)        
Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                   -$                   -$                   

Covered payroll -  fiscal year 3,211,654$    2,918,283$    2,715,385$    

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 13.66% 13.57% 13.33%

Notes to Schedule:
Valuation date: June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:
Actuarial method

Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Asset valuation method

Inflation

Salary increases
Investment rate of return

Omitted years: GASB Statement No. 68 was implemented during the year ended June 30, 2015. No information was available
prior to this date.

Entry age normal cost method
Level percentage of payroll over closed 30 year 

period
Not stated

Actuarial value of assets over 30 years.  5-year 
ramp up/ramp down

2.75%
3.2% to 12.20% depending on entry age and 

service
7.50%, net of pension plan investment expense, 

including inflation

Last 10 Years

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE PENSION PLAN - MISCELLANEOUS PLAN (UNAUDITED)
Last 10 Years

EL DORADO COUNTY TRANSIT AUTHORITY   

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE
NET PENSION LIABILITY - MISCELLANEOUS PLAN (UNAUDITED)

Change in Benefit Terms:  The figures above do not include any liability impact that may have resulted from plan changes 
which occurred after June 30, 2014 as they have minimal cost impact.

Changes in assumptions:  The discount rate change from 7.50% in 2015 to 7.65% in 2016 and 2017 and 7.15% in 2018.

Omitted years:  GASB Statement No. 68 was implemented during the year ended June 30, 2015. No information was available 
prior to this date.
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Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Percentage of

Actuarial Value of Accrued Accrued Funded Covered Covered
Valuation Assets Liability Liability Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)

07/01/2011 38,904$      127,682$   88,778$    30.50% 1,044,243$   8.50%
07/01/2013 79,923        167,989     88,066      47.60% 1,017,350     8.70%
07/01/2015 184,150      434,113     249,963    42.42% 1,275,829     19.59%

EL DORADO COUNTY TRANSIT AUTHORITY   

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN (UNAUDITED)
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS OF THE
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2018

Actuarially determined contribution - employer fiscal year 59,503$          
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contributions (59,503)           

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                   

Covered-employee payroll - employer fiscal year 1,670,014$     

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 3.56%

Notes to Schedule:
Valuation date July 1, 2017
Measurement period - fiscal year ended June 30, 2017

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-age normal cost 
Amortization method Level percentage of payroll
Amortization period Approximately 30 years
Asset valuation method Market value of assets
Inflation 3.00%
Healthcare cost trend rates
Salary increases 3.25%, average, including inflation
Investment rate of return
Retirement age

Mortality

7.28% in 2018
50-67 years. Probabilities of retirement are based on the 2014 CalPERS
Experience Study for the period 1997 to 2011.
Based on 2009 CalPERS Experience Study

Omitted years: GASB Statement No. 75 was implemented during the year ended June 30, 2018. No information was
available prior to this date.  Information will be added prospectively as it becomes available until 10 years are reported.

EL DORADO COUNTY TRANSIT AUTHORITY   

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE OPEB PLAN (UNAUDITED)  
Last 10 Years

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

8% in 2018 to 5% in 2025 and thereafter

4086



2018
Total OPEB liability
Service cost 31,222$        
Interest 33,711          
Differences between expected and actual experience (14,513)        
Changes in assumptions (40,263)        
Changes in benefit terms
Benefit payments (4,550)          
Net change in total OPEB liability 5,607            
Total OPEB liability - beginning 434,113        

Total OPEB liability - ending (a) 439,720$      

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer 55,642$         
Net investment income 19,606          
Benefit payments (4,550)          
Administrative expenses (102)             
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 70,596          
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 187,468        

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 258,064$      

Net OPEB liability - ending (a)-(b) 181,656$      

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability 58.69%

Covered-employee payroll - measurement period 1,462,832$   

Net OPEB liability as percentage of covered-employee payroll 12.42%

Notes to schedule:
Valuation date July 1, 2017
Measurement period - fiscal year ended June 30, 2017

Omitted years: GASB Statement No. 75 was implemented during the year ended June 30, 2018. No information
was available prior to this date. Information will be added prospectively as it becomes available until 10 years are
reported.

EL DORADO COUNTY TRANSIT AUTHORITY   

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS (UNAUDITED)  

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Changes in assumptions.  During 2018, the discount rate was 7.28%.

Last 10 Years

4187



 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

88



2018 2017

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 3,449,044$   3,314,020$   
Employee benefits 2,416,247    1,387,588    
Fuel and lubricants 665,780       539,211       
General liability insurance 496,602       385,353       
Vehicle maintenance 381,764       480,446       
Worker's compensation insurance 214,650       365,881       
Office expense 197,870       151,876       
Professional services 176,779       164,794       
Payroll taxes 68,204         68,098         
Utilities 62,871         69,344         
Communications 58,104         51,143         
Special department expense 54,115         65,016         
Equipment rents/leases 27,630         27,351         
Staff development and training 26,159         36,593         
Uniforms 15,514         21,524         
Household supplies 13,217         10,540         
Membership and publications 11,536         12,748         
Small tools and equipment 5,396           3,531           
Miscellaneous 3,528           (73)              
Claims expense (recovery)                      (4,190)         

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 8,345,010$   7,150,794$   

EL DORADO COUNTY TRANSIT AUTHORITY   

SCHEDULES OF OPERATING EXPENSES

For the Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
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550 Howe Avenue, Suite 210 
Sacramento, California 95825 

Telephone: (916) 564-8727 
FAX: (916) 564-8728 

43 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF  

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH  
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS, THE TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT  

AND OTHER STATE PROGRAM GUIDELINES 

To the Board of Directors 
El Dorado County Transit Authority 
Diamond Springs, California 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the El Dorado County 
Transit Authority (the Authority) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements, and have 
issued our report thereon dated November 30, 2018. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control.  Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the Authority’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters (including other State program guidelines) 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  Our audit was further made to determine that 
Transportation Development Act Funds allocated and received by the Authority were expended in 
conformance with the applicable statutes, rules and regulations of the Transportation Development Act, 
Section 6667 of the California Code of Regulations and other State guidelines.  We also tested the receipt 
and appropriate expenditure of other State grant funds, as presented in Note E of the financial statements, 
in accordance with State grant programs statutes and guidelines.  However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards, the TDA or State grant programs 
requirements. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal 
control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards, the TDA and State grant programs in considering the Authority’s 
internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
November 30, 2018 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH 
MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

El Dorado County Transit Authority 
Diamond Springs, California 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the El Dorado County Transit Authority’s, (the Authority) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of the Authority’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018.  The 
Authority’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions 
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Authority’s major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  We conducted 
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Those standards and the Uniform Guidance 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect 
on a major federal program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
Authority’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances.   

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program.  However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Authority’s 
compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program  

In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. 
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Authority’s internal control over compliance with 
the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to 
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over 
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
November 30, 2018 
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A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS 

Financial Statements Summary of Auditor’s Results 

1. Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified opinion 

2. Internal controls over financial reporting: 

a. Material weaknesses identified? 

b. Significant deficiencies identified not 
considered to be material weaknesses? 

No 

None reported 

3. Noncompliance material to financial 
statements noted? No 

Federal Awards  

4. Internal control over major programs: 

a. Material weaknesses identified? 

b. Significant deficiencies identified not 
considered to be material weaknesses? 

None reported 
 

None reported 

5. Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance 
for major programs: Unmodified 

6. Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 
Section 200.516(a)? No 

7. Identification of major programs:  

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program 

20.507, 20.526 U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal 
Transit Administration 

8. Dollar Threshold used to distinguish between 
Type A and Type B programs? $ 750,000 

9. Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under  
2 CFR Section 200.516(a)? Yes 

 

(Continued) 
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B. FINDINGS – FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 

None 

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COST-MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT 

None 

D. PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

None 
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Federal Pass-Through
CFDA Grantors’

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/ Program Title Number Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Transportation
Federal Transit Administration

Passed through the Sacramento Area Council of
Governments and the Sacramento Regional 
Transit District

Federal Transit Formula Grants, Section 5307
Bus-Rolling Stock 20.507 CA-2017-161 348,659$     
Bus-Rolling Stock 20.507 CA-2016-132 308,771       

Federal Transit Administration
Passed through the California Department of 
Transportation

Formula Grants for Rural Areas, Section 5311
Operating Assistance Grant 20.509 Pending 490,631       

   Federal Transit Administration
Passed through the Sacramento Area Council of Governments
and the Sacramento Transit District

Bus & Bus Facilities Formula Grant
Vehicle Replacement Grant 20.526 CA-2017-161 400,000       
Vehicle Replacement Grant 20.526 CA-2016-132 400,000       

800,000       

TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS 1,948,061$  

The accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are an integral part of this
schedule.  
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NOTE A – BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of El 
Dorado County Transit Authority under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 
2018.  The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Because the Schedule presents only a selected 
portion of the Authority’s operations, it is not intended to be and does not present the financial position, 
changes in net position, or cash flows of the Authority. 

NOTE B – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Expenses reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.  Such expenses are 
recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance and/or OMB Circular A-87, 
Cost Principals for State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments, wherein certain types of expenses are 
not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. 

NOTE C – INDIRECT COSTS 

The Authority did not elect to use the 10 percent de minimus indirect cost rate as covered in 2 CFR 
§200.414. 

NOTE D – SUBRECIPIENTS 

There were no subrecipients of the Authority’s programs during the year ended June 30, 2018. 
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El Dorado County Transit Authority 
December 6, 2018 Agenda 
 

AGENDA ITEM  1  H 
Consent Item 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:  December 6, 2018 
 
TO:   El Dorado County Transit Authority 
 
FROM:  Julie Petersen, Finance Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Transportation Development Act Claim for Fiscal Year    
   2017/18 State of Good Repair Allocation 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 
BY MOTION, 
 Adopt Resolution No. 18-34 Authorizing the Executive Director to 

Claim Transportation Development Act Claim for Fiscal Year 
2017/18 State of Good Repair funds 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The El Dorado County Transit Authority (El Dorado Transit) operates with funding from the 
Transportation Development Act (TDA) which includes the Local Transportation Fund (LTF) 
and State Transit Assistance (STA) and the newly enacted State of Good Repair (SGR) funds; as 
well as, Federal Transit Administration (FTA) funds, passenger fares and grant monies. 
 
The TDA statute establishes the Local Transportation Fund (LTF) by designating that ¼ cent of 
the state sales tax revenue collected within each region be used for transportation purposes, 
primarily for public transit. TDA statute establishes STA from a statewide excise tax on gasoline 
and diesel fuel. The SGR funds are from a portion of the Transportation Improvement Fee 
created from State Bill (SB) 1, the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
El Dorado Transit has prepared a revised claim for $237,022.66 claim for Fiscal Year (FY) 
2017/18 Transportation Development Act State of Good Repair funds based on the allocation 
and interest earned as provided by the El Dorado County Transportation Commission (EDCTC). 
 
The requested $237,022.66 in SGR funds was incorporated in the Final Amended Operating 
Budget FY 2017/18. 
 
The complete SGR claim packet is available for review during regular business hours at the El 
Dorado Transit office – 6565 Commerce Way, Diamond Springs, CA. 
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SGR – 2  

 

 
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT 

STATE OF GOOD REPAIR PROGRAM  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
To:  El Dorado County Transportation 

Commission 2828 Easy Street, Suite 1 
Placerville, California 
95667-3907 Attn: 
Administrative Services 
Officer 

 
 

From: Claimant: 
El Dorado County Transit Authority 

  

Address: 6565 Commerce Way, Diamond Springs, CA 95619  
 

Contact: Julie Petersen 
  

Phone:  (530) 642-5383  
 

The above claimant hereby requests, in accordance with authority granted under the Transportation 
Development Act and applicable rules and regulations adopted by the 
El Dorado County Transportation Commission, that its request for funding be approved as follows: 

 
State of Good Repair: 

 
SGR Amount Fiscal Year 

Preventative Maintenance 
for Fleet 

$237,022.66 FY 2017/2018 

   
   

 
 
 

EDCTC Date of Approval: EDCTC 
Resolution #:   
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EL DORADO COUNTY TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
RESOLUTION NO. 18-34 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE EL DORADO COUNTY TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO SUBMIT A REVISED 
CLAIM FOR TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT (TDA) STATE OF GOOD 

REPAIR (SGR) FUNDS 
 
 
WHEREAS, the El Dorado County Transit Authority intends to use its TDA SGR funding to 
finance transit services for the Western Slope of El Dorado County; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Executive Director or the designated 
representative shall be authorized to file a claim for the TDA SGR per Sections 99313 and 99314 
funding for transit services for fiscal year 2017/18 as follows: 
 
  Preventative Maintenance                   $237,022.66 
  
                                    
PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE EL DORADO 
COUNTY TRANSIT AUTHORITY at a regular meeting of said Board, held on the 6th day of 
December, 2018 by the following vote of said Board: 
 
AYES:         NOES:                   ABSTAIN:                ABSENT:     
 
 
                                                                                           
Shiva Frentzen, Chairperson          
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
                                                                                       
Megan Wilcher, Secretary to the Board 
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